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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION
Public Entity’s General Information
Registered Name:
Nelson Mandela Museum
Registered Office and Postal Address:
Physical Address:
Cnr Nelson Mandela Drive & Owen Street
Bunga Building, Mthatha. 5099
Telephone No. 047 532 5110
Fax No. 047 532 3345

Postal Address:
PO Box 52808
Mthatha. 5099
e-mail: mandelamuseum@intekom.co.za
www.nelsonmandelamuseum.org.za

External Auditors:
Auditor General of South Africa
(043) 709 7200
Rasmeni, Malusi: malusi@agsa.co.za

Museum Bankers:
ABSA Bank Limited
Sutherland Street
Mthatha
Acronyms:
AGSA
ANC
BBBEE
CEO
CFO
DSRAC
HOD
IPAP
MGE
NMM
PFMA
SABC
TR
USA

Auditor General of South Africa
African National Congress
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Department of Sports, Recreation,Arts & Culture
Head of Department
Industrial Policy Action Plan
Mzansi‟s Golden Economy
Nelson Mandela MuseumPFMA
Public Finance Management Act
South African Broadcasting Corporation
Treasury Regulations
United States of America
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Strategic Overview:
1.1

Vision

To be the main museum that represents and interprets the life story and values of Nelson Mandela,
a product and champion of democracy and freedom.

1.2

Mission

The mission of the Nelson Mandela Museum is to:
develop the museum as a site for the collection of artefacts, information, knowledge and life
experiences of Nelson Mandela and a centre for curatorship that promotes a critical
understanding of his life, memory and legacy as one of the greatest leaders of the 21st century;
promote the museum as a centre for cultural life in the forefront of the restoration of ubuntu as
a pioneering philosophy and a force for the transformation of South African society;
build the Nelson Mandela legacy as a vehicle for social change, nation building and the
pursuit of the ideals of human solidarity through educational and advocacy programs, and
promote sustainable community development and self upliftment through partnerships with the
local communities and beyond, educational institutions, the government, the private sector
and other key stakeholders in society.
1.3

Values

The following values will inspire the leadership and staff of the museum and will become an organic
part of the iconic posture the museum will assume as a centre for cultural life;
Democracy
Ubuntu
Stewardship and service excellence
Integrity and respect
Development and learning
1.4

Legislative and other Mandates
1.4.1 Constitutional Mandates
Source

Directives in terms of the constitution

Constitution of the Republic Of South Africa -

2

Recognise the injustices of the past and
honour those who sacrificed for freedom,
Freedom of expression
Access to education and cultural
experiences
A South Africa that belongs to all who live
in it
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1.4.2

Legislative Mandates
Cultural Institutions Act 119 of 1998, as amended
National Heritage Resources Act, 1999. (Act no. 25 of 1999)
Public Finance Management Act of 1999 (Act no. 1 of 1999) as amended and
Treasury Regulations
Labour Relations Act No 66 of 1995,
Basic Conditions of Employment Act of 1997,
Employment Equity Act No 55 of 1998,
Public Service Regulations 2001 as amended,
Information Security Management Act of 2002,
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act No 50 of 2000,
Promotion of Access to Information Act No 2 of 2000.

1.4.3

Policy Mandates
Deed of Donation between Arts and Culture and President Nelson Mandela, 2005.
White Paper on Arts and Culture, 1996.
Policy Paper on Legacy Projects, 2007.
Public Sector Transformation, 1995.
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) Framework, 2007.
Performance Management and Development System, 2010.
Mzansi‟s Golden Economy and Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP2), 2011.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Council

Institutional
Development
Committee

Finance
Committee

Content
Committee

Audit
Committee

CEO

Chief Operations
Officer &
Executive
Assistant

Senior Manager
Marketing

SFLM

Senior
Manager
Programme

Senior Manager
Enterprise
Development
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Executive
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FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

Next year (2014) marks the 14th anniversary of the Nelson Mandela Museum (NMM).
Invariably, after so many years, the museum has not deviated from its primary objective,
which is to serve as a living memory of the legacy of Nelson Mandela. Never in the history
of South Africa has a museum so young but so strong hosted 16 International Countries,
not only from across Africa but also from abroad, unlocking the youth delegate potential
and engaging them in shaping their lives based on democratic values that are embed in
human rights, non-racism, human dignity and selflessness.
The R54 million Bhunga Building upgrade is progressing faster than anticipated.
Completion of this new state of the art structure will feature new facilities to display
changing aspects of the museum‟s large and significant collection as well as additions to
house a Reference Library, Theatre, Children‟s rooms, dark rooms, auditoriums etc. This
major upgrade is due to be completed in November 2013.
This will seeNelson Mandela‟s gifts finding their way back to claim their space in the
revamped historical Bhunga Building. The famous „Meaning of Nelson Mandela audio
visual exhibition, so much loved by tourists and learners alike, and a must see that traces
Nelson Mandela‟s life and times from his birth, with each layer of his life telling the story of
the struggle of South Africa, will alsocaptivate visitors once again at the renovated
Bhunga Building.
The SAPOA award winning Qunu site, unique in the architectural significance and setting
of its buildings will be further enhanced by the additional buildings that will housethe Long
Walk To Freedom film set that was donated by the international award winning film
producer Anant Singh on the occasion of Nelson Mandela‟s 94th birthday.
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One of the major capital projects is the refurbishment of the existing Qunu site. Funded by
the National Departof Arts & Culture, this major architectural addition will provide state-ofthe-art facilities that will fit the purpose envisaged by its patron and founder, Nelson
Mandela-to be the Nelson Mandela Youth and Heritage Centre.
The Nelson Mandela Museum travelling exhibitions received outstandingly generous
support with stakeholders and partners competing to house them for a period of three
months to a year. This saw the museum installing and dismantling exhibitions at different
venues around the country, from the Northern Cape, Gauteng, Mpumalanga, Limpopo
and Eastern Cape to the Western Cape. More exhibitions are travelling Europe and
America through our International partnerships that include the Michigan State University,
American Association of Museums, Rosa Parks Foundation, American Embassy, Anne Frank
Foundation, etc.
Through our displays, exhibitions and outreach programmes the Museum left footprints
around the country. One of the most significant of these is the Mandela Month, which the
museum dedicates to outreach, identifying needy homesteads and doing community
work with learners. This is one of the critical avenues used by the museum to stay in touch
with the local communities.
The Nelson Mandela Museum‟s increasing presence nationally and internationally has also
drawn support from a wide range of individuals and bodies across the globe. Such
developments put the museum in good stead on the national, continental and global
scale. Most recent is the enormous support the museum received internationally during
Madiba‟s admission in hospital due to his ill health. Messages of support, telephone calls
and artworks were received from across the Globe.
The Nelson Mandela Museum Council is immeasurably grateful for the timely generosity,
continuous support and undying commitment from the national Department of Arts and
Culture for funding the new R5.7m worth ICT project, which will position the museum
favourably in global ICT standards. This will also improve the museum‟s performance and
enhance its marketability.
The Museum has the most significant collection of Nelson Mandela‟s gifts that he received
from all over the world during his presidency and beyond. In addition to these gifts is the
rich open air tangible heritage which tells the unique story of his humble beginnings. These
include significant spaces such as the ruins of his Qunu Primary School where he was
named Nelson by his teacher on his first day of school, the former Thembu Church now
known as the African Native Mission Church, which does not only tell the story on Nelson
Mandela, but the road travelled by the people of South Africa. There are other spaces of
historical significance such as Mqhekezweni and Mvezo. Mandela‟s history would be
incomplete without making reference to these spaces, which shaped his life.
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The Nelson Mandela Museum welcomes the New CEO Mr Bayanda Nyengule who took
over from Mr Khwezi Mpumlwana who started the museum from its humble beginnings
and moved it to the stratosphere where it is today. The out-going Museum Council has
done a sterling job of normalising things at the museum –including the appointment of the
new CEO – and is hopeful that the next Council will continue from where it left off and
move the museum to the heights.

Mrs Pumla Madiba
Chairperson: Nelson Mandela Museum
Date: 31 May 2013
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REPORT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr Bayanda Nyengule

The Nelson Mandela Museum Council in its strategic planning session held in November
2012 reviewed the museum‟s vision to read as:
“tobe the main museumthat represents and interprets the life story and values of Nelson
Mandela, a product and championo democracy and freedom.”
This visionaspires to see the leadership and staff of the museum emulating the sacrifices
made by former president Nelson Mandela. This also confirms the museum as an institution
that seeks to attract the international community tocome and learn about his life in his
home town.
In the year under review, the Nelson Mandela Museum continued discharging its
mandate as it hosted the International Youth Camp in October 2012 at the Nelson
Mandela Museum Youth and Heritage Centre in Qunu with a resounding success where
the youth throughout all walks of life and different countries- of the SADC, East Africa,
Middle East and Europe.
Furthermore, in conjunction with the Centre of Memory at the Nelson Mandela
Foundation, the National Heritage Council, University of Fort Hare and other stakeholders,
the museum hosted a colloquium at its youth centre on “legacies and the state of the
archives.” This colloquium was a built up to the International Conference on “Archives
deepening democracy” that was also held in October 2012.
In this vision and mission of becoming a “site for the collection of artefacts, information,
knowledge” and the “promotion of sustainable community development and
development through partnerships with communities” the museum is guided by a highly
competent museum Council made up of councillors with diverse skills, expertise and
experiences from across academic disciplines.
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For the current reporting year, the Council had mandated the museum management and
staff to achieve the following objectives:
Ensuring that strategy, policy, oversight and accountability are implemented;
Ensuring organisational sustainability and accountability;
Co-ordinating the institutional functioning;
Providing adequate support to Council and ensuring the implementation of Council
strategic and policy directions; and
Rendering a corporate services function in all respects.
In the period under review, the following were the major focus points of the programme:
Strengthening governance and sustaining the achievement of a further unqualified
audit;
Addressing issues raised by the Auditor-General with the aim of achieving a clean
Audit by 2014;
Strengthening organisational capacity and positioning-including clarification and
implementation of the performance frameworks;
Strengthening the policy environment and compliance aspects; and
Timely alerting the Department of Arts and Culture to the expiry of the Council Term.
In line with these priorities the following achievements were made:
Another unqualified audit was achieved;
An Internal Audit services provider was appointed and started implementing its three
year rolling plan in this financial year;
An ICT Concept Document was developed by management soliciting funding to
change the ICT architecture of the museum to a situation that is responsive to the
museum challenges. An amount of R5.7m was received from DAC. I take my hat off to
our mother institution for its continued and relentless support to NMM.
A strategic alliance was forged with the Eastern Cape Tourism and Parks Agency in the
context of coordinated strategic marketing and joint cooperation on areas of
common interests and strategic importance. A joint programme between The Office of
The Premier, National Department of Tourism, Eastern Cape Tourism & Parks Agency
together with the Nelson Mandela Museum known as the “ Home of the Legends has
heralded a new dawn. This programme was launched at Mqhekezweni in November
2012.
A CEO was appointed and assumed his duties on 1 October 2012, thus contributing to
the managerial stability of the museum at a strategic level.
It was then clear to us that the achievement of these objectives depends on sound and
effective governance. Consequently, our programmes and activities were geared
towards achieving these set goals as reflected in this annual report. Some of the highlights
of this reporting year in all our activities are as follows:
An unqualified audit report, although there are many areas in which we must still
improve as an institution;
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Bhunga upgrade which is still in the process of completion;
Travelling exhibitions to all the provinces of the Republic of South Africa;
Consolidation of institutional stakeholders and partnerships with Houses of Traditional
Leadership, schools, churches and other institutions associated with Nelson Mandela
such as the Nelson Mandela Centre of Memory at the Nelson Mandela Foundation
and theRobben Island Museum.

Again in this reporting year the museum continued to strengthen partnership in areas
where it is strong and those in which it still needs to improve on. This summary is however
an indicator of the road that has been travelled by the museum in the year under review
but as it would be observed, it also indicates our limitations as an institution and areas in
which we need to improve. As a young institution that is 13 years old with limited budget
and staff compliment, we are determined to continually improve on both our
administration and programme activities.
Lastly, the financial state of any institution and the efficient management of public funds is
one of the determining indicators of an improving and efficient institution. In this regard, as
in the previous year, the Nelson Mandela Museum has again received an unqualified
audit report. We owe this to our cogently coordinated systems, which must continue to
improve in order to ensure that our report does not have any matters of emphasis in
future.

Mr Bayanda Nyengule
Chief Executive Officer
Nelson Mandela Museum
Date: 31 May 2013
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PART B: PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE REPORT
2.1

INTRODUCTION

The Nelson Mandela Museum was opened on 11 February 2000 on 3 sites (Mvezo, Qunu and Bhunga
Building) by Former President Mandela and then Minister of Arts and Culture, Dr Ben Ngubane and it was
gazetted in the same year in terms of the Cultural Institutions Act. The museum opening followed a long
consultative process that started shortly after Mr Mandela in 1996 announced that he would donate his gifts
to a museum that was to be established in the Eastern Cape, at a meeting chaired by General Holomisa
(then Deputy Minister of Environment and Tourism) in Qunu. The consultative process culminated in a
definition of where the museum sites will be, what the museum would contribute to and broadly the strategic
direction of the museum.
The Minister of Arts and Culture appoints a Council to oversee the strategic and policy direction of the
museum, the council exercises oversight over a management team in its execution of the strategy and
budget so determined with the said policy framework. The present performance report against the
predetermined objectives is presented to the Executive Authority, National Assembly and stakeholders in
general to demonstrate progress against predetermined objectives and to indicate areas where there has
been deviation from predetermined targets with reasons.
The financial year under review saw a measurable progress in the Bhunga Building upgrade project although
the execution of Qunu upgrade project experienced delays partly due to insufficiency of funding. During this
Financial year the Museum received a gift from Video Vision in Cape Town in the form of a Film set
consisting of 4 different scenes namely, Mr Mandela’s house in Orlando, Robben Island Cell, Robben Island
Visitor Centre and Pretoria Court Room. The museum continued to make itself visible and made its presence
felt in all the provinces through Travelling exhibitions and Youth Camps Nationally and Internationally.
The Museum has continued its endeavours to deliver on a strategy that is aligned to Mzansi’s Golden
Economy (MGE).
The Museum’s performance goals in the period under review were the following:
1. To promote public knowledge, learning appreciation and the enjoyment of the life of Nelson
Mandela.
2. To develop, implement and maintain governance and management policies and procedures. To also
improve infrastructure, facilities management and security of museum’s buildings, Equipment and
Artefacts in all the museum sites.
3. To develop and grow diverse audiences, communicate and position the Nelson Mandela Museum
favourably. To also leverage the Nelson Mandela Museum value proposition for economic
opportunities for the museum and communities. .
The tables that follow highlight progress in performance against the predetermined targets.
The Museum thanks the Minister of Arts and Culture, the National Assembly, The Portfolio Committee for
Arts and Culture, the communities, the donors, its various supporters and various stakeholders that have
been part of the museum’s success to date.

Mr Bayanda Nyengule
Chief Executive Officer
Nelson Mandela Museum

Mrs Pumla Madiba
Chairperson of Council
Nelson Mandela Museum

Date: 31 May 2013

Date: 31 May 2013
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Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Develop
effective and
efficient
functioning
Council in
accordance
with relevant
statutes

Develop
effective and
efficient
functioning
Council in
accordance
with relevant
statutes

Develop
effective and
efficient
functioning
Council in
accordance
with relevant
statutes

Develop
effective and
efficient
functioning
Council in
accordance
with relevant
statutes

Improve

Responsible
Business Unit

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

Office of the

Development of

Approved
Strategic plan
and Annual
Performance plan
and divisional
performance
plans

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Develop and

2012/2013 Personnel

Have an
2012/2013 Personnel
approved
costs and
strategic plan
Council
and Annual
expenditure
Performance plan
as well as
divisional
performance
plans in place

2012/2013 Professional
fees

Have at least 4
2012/2013 Personnel
Audit Committee
costs and
Meetings
Council
operating in
expenditure
accordance with
Audit Committee
Charter during
the Financial
year.

Hold 4
2012/2013 Personnel
appropriately
costs and
supported
Council
council meetings
expenditure
during the
Financial year

Target

Functioning
Appoint and
Internal Audit
have a
Function in place functioning
Internal Audit
function in place
through out the
financial year.

Effective Audit
committee
meetings
operating in
accordance with
the Audit
Committee
Charter

Holding of
appropriately
supported
Council Meetings

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Strategic Goal 1: Develop, Implement and Maintain
governance and management policies and Procedures

3.2 PERFORMANCE MATRIX

Cumulative
Targets

1

1

1

4

4

Cumulative
Actual
Results

1

1

1

3

3

Variance

CUMULATIVE RESULTS REPORTED ON

0 Met

0 Met

0 Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

4th meeting held in
April 2013.

Fourth meeting will
be held in May
2013 (after year
end)

Comment
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Improve
revenue
generation to
support
implementation
of museum
programmes
and activities.

Improve
Amount of Cash
revenue
and in-kind
generation to
Sponsorship
support
implementation
of museum
programmes
and activities.

Ensure effective
Stakeholder
engagement
and Coordination of
Stakeholder
Relations

Ensure effective
Stakeholder
engagement
and Coordination of
Stakeholder
Relations

Improve
revenue
generation to

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

Office of the
CEO

costs

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Arrange and
conclude 5
Partnerships
represented by
MOU's and SLA's
during the
financial year.

100% of the total
number of
approved
specific projects
to be achieved
on time and at
the agreed cost
during the
Financial year.

Raise R500 000
worth of
sponsorship in
Cash and in-kind
during the
Financial year

2012/2013 Personnel
Costs budget

2012/2013 Personnel
costs budget

2012/2013 Personnel
costs budget

2012/2013 Personnel
Cost Budget

Make two
2012/2013 Personnel
funding proposals
costs
and have them
approved by
Donors within this
financial year

have a fund
raising plan in
place during the
1st quarter of the
Financial year

Target

Income
R 700 000 of
generated by the income to be
Museum
generated

Number of
partnerships
concluded
represented by
MOU's and SLA's

Percentage of
approved
specific Projects
completed on
time and at
agreed cost

Number of
Funding proposals
approved by
Donors

revenue
a fund raising
generation to
plan
support
implementation
of museum
programmes
and activities.

CEO

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Responsible
Business Unit

2

Cumulative
Actual
Results

R 700,000

5

100%

2

R 619,414

0

100%

R 500,000 R5,735,000

Cumulative
Targets

0 Met

Met/Not
Met

-R 80,586 Not Met

-5 Not Met

0% Met

R 5,235,000 Achieved

Variance

Cash flows
negatively
affected by

Work in Progress
with following
Institutions: >
Robben Island
Museum >
National Heritage
Council >EC Parks
Tourism Board

Colloquium target,
Mandela Activities
and follow up with
museum
management

Funding for ITC
Project received
from DAC.

Achieved

Comment
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To develop and
review all
policies,
procedures and
systems for all
the areas of the
organisation

Improve
Percentage of
development
invoices paid
and
within 30 days
implementation
of internal
management
systems in order
to achieve
positive audit
outcomes,
unqualified and
clean audit by

Museum
Management

Admin and
Finance

Number of
Policies,
procedures and
systems reviewed.

Number of
policies,
procedures and
systems
developed.

To develop and
review all
policies,
procedures and
systems for all
the areas of the
organisation

Museum
Management

Number of
reviews of Internal
Financial Policies,
Systems and
Procedures

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Ensure that the
museum has the
necessary
policies and
procedures that
would enable
an effective
functioning of
the programmes
and review
them on an
annual basis

support
implementation
of museum
programmes
and activities.

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Admin and
Finance

Responsible
Business Unit

2012/2013 Personnel
Costs budget

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

2012/2013 Personnel
costs Budget

100% of invoices 2012/2013 Personnel
to be paid within
costs budget
30 days of receipt
of the invoice
during the
Financial year

4 policies,
procedures and
systems to be
reviewed during
the current
financial year

One(1) policy,
2012/2013 Personnel
procedures and
costs budget
systems to be
developed during
the current
financial year

Review one(1)
Internal Financial
Policy, Systems
and Procedures
during the
Financial Year

internally by the
museum during
the financial year

Target

4

1

1

100%

Cumulative
Targets

0

0

0

75%

Cumulative
Actual
Results
Variance

-25% Not Met

-4 Not Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Workloads and
efficiencies to be
investigated for all
staff levels

This could not be
achieved due to
shortage of
Personnel.

But still being
researched.
Remuneration and
retention policy
pending Council
approval

This could not be
achieved due to
shortage of
personnel.

hosting of
International Youth
Camp and Artist in
residence. Speed
point is work in
progress

Comment
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Ensure effective Compilation and Quarterly
and efficient
submission of
Financial Report
management of quarterly financial submitted to

2012/2013 personnel
cots budget

Monthly Financial 2012/2013 Personnel
Reports compiled
Costs budget
and submitted to
management by
15th of month
following month
reported on.

Admin and
Finance

Compilation and
submission of
Monthly reports to
Management

Ensure Sound
Financial
Management

A comparative
2012/2013 Personnel
analysis of actual
costs budget
expenditure
against budget
produced
monthly

Budget to be
2012/2013 Personnel
submitted to DAC
costs budget
by end of
February each
year

Admin and
Finance

Control and
monitoring of
budget
expenditure by
compilation of
analysis of
budget and
actual
expenditure
report

Compilation and
submission of
budget to
Council and
Department of
Arts and Culture

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

19 items in the
2012/2013 Personnel
audit intervention
costs budget
plan raised by the
Auditor General
in the preceding
year to be
addressed during
the Financial year

Target

Ensure Sound
Financial
Management

Ensure Sound
Financial
Management

Admin and
Finance

Number of items
in the audit
intervention plan
raised by the
Auditor General
in the preceding
year to be
addressed.

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Admin and
Finance

Improve
development
and
implementation
of internal
management
systems in order
to achieve
positive audit
outcomes,
unqualified and
clean audit by
2014

2014

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Admin and
Finance

Responsible
Business Unit

4

12

12

1

19

Cumulative
Targets

4

0

12

1

36

Cumulative
Actual
Results
Variance

0 Met

-12 Not Met

0 Met

0 Met

17 Met

Met/Not
Met

Only submitted to
DAC as the council
has not yet met to

Pastel accounting
system still requires
full integration and
reporting systems
require further
inputs

Achieved

Achieved

36 items were
addressed and 14
are in progress with
3 items unresolved
from a total of 53
items raised by the
Auditor General.
The estimated
target at the
beginning of the
year was 19 items
based on prevous
year's figure hence
the apparent over
achievement of 17
items.

Comment
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Ensure effective Update and
and efficient
review of Supplier
supply chain
Database
management
operated within
the prescripts of
the National
Treasury Supply
Chain
Management
Framework and
applicable
legislation

Promote a
Culture of
continuous

Admin and
Finance

Human
Resource

Management
proficiency level
review

Full Compliance
with Treasury
Supply Chain
Management
Framework

Ensure effective
and efficient
supply chain
management
operated within
the prescripts of
the National
Treasury Supply
Chain
Management
Framework and
applicable
legislation

Admin and
Finance

Timely compiled
quarterly
projections,
reports, and
reconciliations.

Ensure effective
and efficient
management of
museum funds

The Nelson
Mandela
Museum

2012/2013 Personnel
costs budget

Personnel
costs budget

2012/2013 Personnel
costs budget

2012/2013 Personnel
costs budget

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Update and
2012/13
review museum
supplier database
once during the
financial year

Achieve 100%
compliance with
full Treasury
Supply Chain
Management
Framework

Quarterly
reconciliations
and 4 quarterly
projections
produced and
submitted to
management
and council
during the year

reports to Council council and DAC
and DAC
by the end of the
month following
the last month of
quarter reported
on.

museum funds

Target

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Admin and
Finance

Responsible
Business Unit

1

1

100%

12 monthly
reports and 4
quarterly
projection
report

Cumulative
Targets

0

1

100%

12 monthly
bank
reconciliatio
ns done

Cumulative
Actual
Results
Met/Not
Met

-1 Not Met

0 Met

0% Met

Other
reconciliations
Not Met
and projections
not done.

Variance

No Performance
reviews were done
by the Office of the

Achieved

Achieved

Pastel accounting
system still requires
full integration and
reporting systems
require further
inputs

consider them

Comment
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Promote a
Culture of
continuous
improvement
across the
organisation in
order to
transform the
way the
museum does
business

Develop and
strengthen
internal
capacity
through an
integrated
Human
resources
Development
strategy
focusing on
scarce and
critical needs
within the
museum

Promote a
culture of
continuous
improvement
across the
organisation in
order to

Human
Resource

Human
Resource

improvement
across the
organisation in
order to
transform the
way the
museum does
business

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Human
Resource

Responsible
Business Unit

Number of
performance
review sessions
held by line
managers with
their staff

Training
expenditure as a
percentage of
operational
expenditure

Staff proficiency
levels reviewed

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Four(4) review
sessions to be
held by each
Managers with
his/her staff
during the
financial year

The Museum will
keep the staff
training and
development
expenditure at
10% of the total
operational
expenditure

2012/2013 Personnel
Costs budget

2012/2013 Staff Training
and
development

The Nelson
2012/2013 Personnel
Mandela
costs budget
Museum staff
proficiency levels
should be
reviewed
annually

management
proficiency
should be
reviewed
annually

Target

1

4

10%

Cumulative
Targets

0.25

2%

0.25

Cumulative
Actual
Results
Variance

-3.75 Not Met

-8% Not Met

-0.75 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Only the Heritage
department
assessed
performance of
staff during the first
quarter.

Budgetary
constraints and
target levels to be
adjusted to budget
limitations and skills
targets. Require
clear policy on skills
development and
funding thereof.
Target overstated.

No performance
reviews were done
by Management
on taff to review
proficiency as no
performance
contracts were
drawn and signed.

CEO on Museum
Management
although
Performance
contracts are in
place due to the
change of
incumbent in the
Office of the CEO
after resignation of
the previous CEO.
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Promote a
culture of
continuous
improvement
across the
organisation in
order to
transform the
way the
Museum does
business

Develop and
inculcate a
culture of
positive and
progressive
thinking of NMM
employees

Benchmark on
Recruitment
best practice
and establish
links with
institutions of
higher learning
and recruitment
Agencies

Benchmark on
Recruitment
best practice
and establish
links with
institutions of
higher learning
and recruitment
Agencies

Human
Resource

Human
Resource

Human
Resource

transform the
way the
Museum does
business

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Human
Resource

Responsible
Business Unit

Number of
successful links
with recruitment
agencies

Number of
memoranda of
understanding
with Universities
and Colleges

Number of
change
management
workshops and
team building

Number of
performance
review sessions
held with
managers

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Establish three(3)
successful links
with recruitment
agencies

Establish and
Conclude
three(3)
memoranda of
understanding
with universities
and Colleges
during the
financial year
2012/2013 Recruitment
expense
budget

2012/2013 Recruitment
expense
budget

One(1) change
2012/2013 Staff Training
management
and
workshop and
development
team building to
be held during
the financial year

Four(4) review
2012/2013 Personnel
sessions to be
Costs budget
held with
Managers during
the financial year

Target
Cumulative
Targets

3

3

1

4

Cumulative
Actual
Results

2

1

0

0

Variance

-1 Not Met

-2 Not Met

-1 Not Met

-4 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Personnel Profile
and Ayanda
Mbanga
Communications.
The third was not
achieved as we
did not undertake
massive
recruitment drive.

SLA with University
of Forthare, and
Michigan State
University
continuous from
previous years.
One still under
discussion with
WSU.

Budget limitations to re-identify and
prioritise budget
allocations for staff
interventions which
are critical for
change
management to
become effective

No Management
Performance
contracts were
completed and
signed by most
managers due to
disgruntlement
resulting from the
non-payment of
Management
incentive.
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To build and
strengthen the
Nelson
Mandela
Museum brand
and build its
profile and
Image
nationally and
internationally

Marketing

To build and
strengthen the
Nelson
Mandela
Museum brand

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Responsible
Business Unit

Participation in
International
expo's

Hosting events
that attract
diverse
audiences

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

Two(2)
Internationals
Expo's to be
attended and
exhibited in

2012/2013

Two(2) events
2012/2013
that attract
diverse
audiences to be
hosted during
the financial year

Target

Strategic Goal 2: Develop and grow diverse audiences,
communicate and position NMM favourable.

Durban
Tourism
Indaba
budget

Mandela day
and Museum
Anniversary
day budget

Funding
Overall
targets

2

2

Overall results

2

3

Variance

0

1 Met

Met/ Not
Met

Achieved.
Exhibited in 2012
Durban Tourism
Indaba in May
2012, National

Mandela Month
series of events
1) Tribute to
struggle stalwards
on 06-07-2012
2)Launch of NMM
arts incubator on
13-07-2012
3) Launch of
Qunu community
memory online
project on
16-07-2012.
4) Preservation of
Ludeke sites,
Mbizana on
19-07-2012.
5)Preservation of
earth buildings on
20-07-2012.
6) 13th
anniversary
celebrations
6.1 co-ordination
of clubs and
sponsorship
6.2 Soccer
tournament - 16
clubs from Qunu
and neighbouring
villages
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To strengthen
Establishing a
communication monthly e-news
within NMM as
letter
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between

Marketing

Marketing

Marketing
multimedia
outreach road
shows

To strengthen
Printing News
communication Letters
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Marketing

Building relations
with international
and national
media networks

Performance
Measure (KPI)

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

and build its
profile and
Image
nationally and
internationally

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Marketing

Responsible
Business Unit

2012/2013

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

Twelve(12)
Multimedia
outreach Road
shows to be
undertaken to

2012/2013

Monthly news
2012/2013
letters to be
established and
distributed during
the financial year

Four(4) news
2012/2013
letters to be
printed and
distributed during
the Financial
year

80 media articles
covering NMM
events
appearing in
various news
papers and
magazines
internationally
and nationally
during the
financial year

during the
financial year

Target

Multimedia
Road shows
Budget

Printing and
Stationery

Printing and
Stationery

Advertising
and
Promotion
budget

Funding

12

12

4

80

Overall
targets

10

11

8

184

Overall results

Variance

-2 Not Met

-1 Not Met

4 Met

104 Met

Met/ Not
Met

The museum
vehicles were not
available during
the last quarter.

Due to
unavailability of
funds however
information is
distributed through
the website and
social media

4 additional News
letters were
developed for the
youth camp
during the
international youth
camp held in
October 2012.

The museum
featured on the
internet X63, Print
media X 121

Tourism skills expo
in September 2012,
International
conference on the
state of archives in
October 2012
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Performance
Measure (KPI)

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

To strengthen
Improving
communication internal

Marketing

Publicity of
Bhunga closure
N2 and Airport
publicity

To strengthen
Sourcing
communication Branding
within NMM as
Material
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Marketing

Marketing

Responsible
Business Unit

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

Establish and
2012/2013
publish a monthly

Design and erect 2012/2013
signage for
Bhunga closure
on N2 and
Airport

Source branding 2012/2013
material for 5
projects during
the financial year

promote
interactions with
Museum service
during the
financial year

Target

Advertising
and

Not budgeted
for

Branding,
Publicity and
Promotions
budget

Funding

1

5

12

Overall
targets
Overall results

9

0

9

Variance

-3 Not Met

-1 Not Met

4 Met

Met/ Not
Met

Due to frequent
changes. However

Designs/ artworks
available, R420
000 funding for
production not
available from
current budget.

Through Arts
Incubator, Tourism
Indaba, exhibition
launch in
sterkstroom ,
branding for the
International Youth
Camp(street
banner,
Colloquium,
Mandela month,
council jackets,
the development
of the wall banner
dedicated to
Mqekezweni
during the home
of legends
campaign and
the branded
material in a form
of, Full Soccer
kit(Puma), gold,
silver and bronze
medals was
purchased
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To strengthen
Printing of
communication Brochures and
within NMM as
Folders
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between

Marketing

Marketing

Implementing an
interactive and
highly public
responsive digital
media

Establishing
Integrated
marketing and
Communication
plan

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Marketing

Opening of
facebook
accounts for all
staff members to
strengthen
internal
communication

communication
by publishing a
calendar of
events

within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Marketing

Responsible
Business Unit

2012/2013

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

Twenty four (24)
2012/2013
interactive and
highly public
responsive digital
media

Print brochures
2012/2013
and folders once
a quarter during
the 1st and the
3rd quarter of the
financial year

Establish and
2012/2013
have in place an
integrated
marketing and
communication
plan by the end
of the 3rd quarter
of the financial
year

Open
Fourteen(14)
Facebook
accounts for all
staff members in
order to
strengthen
internal
communication
during the
financial year

calendar of
events to
improve internal
communication
during the
financial year

Target

Advertising
and
Promotion
budget

Brochures and
folders Budget

Not budgeted
for

No cost
implications

Promotion
budget

Funding

24

2

1

14

Overall
targets
Overall results

46

4

0

0

Variance

22 Met

2 Met

-1 Not Met

-14 Not Met

Met/ Not
Met

Various museum
activities were
promoted on
social media. The
Mandela day was

April to mark the
new financial year
for Indaba,
Mandela month
and September

R360 000(Lowest
quote) funding
required not
available from
current budget.

Staff not keen to
open facebook
account due to
risk factors
associated with
Facebook.

the calendar of
events and
internal
communication
memorandums
were published
and circulated.
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Conducting
customer
satisfaction
survey

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all

Marketing

Four(4) quarterly
customer
satisfaction
surveys to be
conducted
during the

2012/2013

2012/2013

To strengthen
Advertising
communication through
within NMM as
Television
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Marketing

Place one(1)
television
advertisement
during the
financial year

To strengthen
Advertising
Eight(8)
2012/2013
communication through paid
advertisements
within NMM as
broadcast media made through
an organisation
paid broadcast
and between
media during the
NMM and all
financial year.
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

update the
2012/2013
website content
monthly during
the financial year

campaigns to be
implemented
during the year

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

Marketing

campaigns

NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Target

To strengthen
Monthly website
communication updates
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Marketing

Responsible
Business Unit

Personnel
costs budget

Not budgeted
for

Advertising
and
Promotion
budget

Website
postings and
maintenance
budget

Funding

4

1

6

12

Overall
targets
Overall results

4

0

11

12

Variance

0 Met

-1 Not Met

5 Met

0 Met

Met/ Not
Met

The survey
questionnaires,
visitor comments
and suggestions
register as used as
a basis for visitor

R650 000 required
funding not
available from
current budget.
However the
museum featured
25 times on
broadcast
(Television and
radio)

There were more
events than
anticipated. The
museum
advertised 4 X on
Khanya and 3 X
on Vukani
Community Radios
as well as
advertising on 2X
UCR FM and
bought a slot.

Posted 1 press
releases for 13th
Anniversary
tournament, the
database form
and RFP for ICT
and Gardening
services.

spread over a
month period and
during the
International youth
camp

Comment

24

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

To strengthen
communication
within NMM as
an organisation
and between
NMM and all
stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

To provide
memorable,
authentic tour
packages that
embrace
heritage and
humble
beginnings of
Dr N. Mandela

Marketing

Marketing

stakeholders,
partners, the
media and the
general public

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Marketing

Responsible
Business Unit

Establishing a
contract with
brochure
distribution
agency

Conducting
Stakeholder
satisfaction
survey

Compiling a
Nelson Mandela
Museum
Marketing DVD

Performance
Measure (KPI)

2012/2013

2012/2013

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

A contract is to
2012/2013
be concluded
and be in place
with brochure
distribution
agency during
the financial year

One(1
)Stakeholder
satisfaction
survey to be
conducted
during the
financial year

One(1) Nelson
Mandela
Museum
Marketing DVD
to be compiled
during the
financial year

financial year

Target

Brochure
distribution
budget

Marketing
and
Stakeholder
participation
budget

Branding,
Publicity and
Promotion
budget

Funding
Overall
targets

1

1

1

Overall results

1

7

2

Variance

0 Met

6 Met

1 Met

Met/ Not
Met

Brochure
distribution agency
was commissioned
to distribute
brochures at
strategic places
such as Alwal
north tourism, EL
airport, Mthatha
airport, Red
location Museum,
Albany museum,
George national
airport,

Through
stakeholder
engagement and
feedback. The
museum worked in
partnership with
EC Premier's office,
Mqhekezweni
Great Place, DOT,
Social
Development,
DSRAC, KSD
Municipality,
Marhelane, Milton
Mbekela SSS and
Qunu Youth Forum

Marketing DVD's
were ordered for
Indaba and
Tourism
month(September)

feedback
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Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

To provide
memorable,
authentic tour
packages that
embrace
heritage and
humble
beginnings of
Dr N. Mandela

To provide
memorable,
authentic tour
packages that
embrace
heritage and
humble
beginnings of
Dr N. Mandela

To provide
memorable,
authentic tour
packages that
embrace
heritage and
humble
beginnings of
Dr N. Mandela

To provide
memorable,
authentic tour
packages that
embrace
heritage and
humble
beginnings of
Dr N. Mandela

Effective
stakeholder
engagement

Responsible
Business Unit

Marketing

Marketing

Marketing

Marketing

Marketing

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

2012/2013

Branded
merchandise to
be purchased in
order to create
awareness,
during the 2nd
quarter of the
financial year

2012/2013

2012/2013

Footprints tour
2012/2013
package to be
launched during
the 1st quarter of
the financial year

One(1) golf cart
to be purchased
during the
financial year for
accessibility of
museum spaces

Update National 2012/2013
and International
operators
Database
quarterly.

Target

Number of joint
Three(3) joint
programmes with programmes
partners and
undertaken with

Purchasing
branded
merchandise to
create
awareness

Launching of
footprint tour
package

Purchasing of
golf cart for
accessibility of
museum spaces

Establishing of an
updated
National and
International tour
operators
database

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Mandela day
budget

Not budgeted
for

Not budgeted
for

Not budgeted
for

Personnel cost
budget

Funding
Overall
targets

3

1

1

1

6

Overall results

4

0

1

0

11

Variance

1 Met

-1 Not Met

0 Met

-1 Not Met

5 Met

Met/ Not
Met

Mandela Month,
Launch of Home
of Legends,

Design in place,
however the
minimal R100 000
funding required
for stock
production not
available from
current budget.

Achieved

R32 000 required
funding not
available from
current budget
that excludes
transportation cost
not available

Database
updated after
every significant
event. Indaba,
Mandela month,
tourism expo. As a
result 7 new tour
operators were
recorded during
the last quarter

Drakensburg
Tourism etc
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Responsible
Business Unit

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Stakeholders

Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

and coordination of
stakeholder
relationships

partners and
Stakeholders
during the
financial year

Target

Base Year
2011/12
Estimate

Funding
Overall
targets
Overall results

Variance

Met/ Not
Met
Launch of
Footprints tour
package and 13th
Anniversary
Celebrations

Comment

27

Documenting of Develop
all Museum
catalogue cards
artefacts for
for artefacts
proper
accountability,
conservation and
sustainable use.

Documenting of
all Museum
artefacts for
proper
accountability,
conservation and
sustainable use.

Increasing
Knowledge and
understanding of
the museum
collection

Increasing
Knowledge and
understanding of
the museum
collection

Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Hold seminars
related to
Nelson
Mandela, his
contemporaries
and the
Liberation
struggle and
Heritage

Identify places
and catalogue
related sites on
Nelson Mandela
archives

Research on
artefacts
provenance
and historic
analysis

De-assertion of
artefacts that
are permanently
damaged

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Responsible
Business Unit

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

2012/2013 Not budgeted
for

2012/2013 Research
Budget

Hold two seminars 2012/2013 Research
related to Nelson
Budget
Mandela, his
contemporaries
and the
Liberation
struggle and
Heritage

50% of places
and related sites
on Nelson
Mandela
Archives to be
identified and
catalogued

Research on
2012/2013 Research
artefacts
Budget
Provenance and
historic analysis of
200 artefacts
during the year.

No artefacts to
be deassertioned
during the year

400 Catalogue
2012/2013 Not budgeted
Cards to be
for
developed during
the Financial year

Target

Strategic Goal 3: Promote public knowledge, learning
appreciation and enjoyment of the life story of Nelson
Mandela.

200

0

400

2

50%

Overall
targets

2

10%

396

0

400

Overall results

0 Not Met

0 Met

Met/Not
Met

0 Met

-40% Not Met

196 Met

Variance

Seminars done in the
1st and 3rd quarter

Sites were identified
and still busy with the
reconciliation

Acquired 196 more
objects than
targeted number

No provision this year
as the artefacts are
kept in a vault

The catalogue cards
were developed and
are available
electronically but
there was inadequate
budget for printing
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Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Target

Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Promoting better Development of Develop twelve
understanding of video Material 12 videos during
Nelson Mandela
the Financial

Programmes

Programmes

Stage a Winter
School Youth
Camp

2012/2013 International
Youth Camp
Budget

2012/2013 No Budget

Organise and
2012/2013 Winter School
Stage one Winter
Camp Budget
School Youth
Camp during the
Financial Year

Organising one
2012/2013 Artist in
Artist in residence
Residence
workshop during
Budget
the 3rd quarter of
the financial year

Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Programmes

Organise and
hold one
International
Youth Camp
during the 3rd
quarter of the
Financial Year.

Promoting good
citizenship and
Leadership

Organisation
and Holding of
Art Incubator
workshop

2012/2013 Colloquium
Budget

2012/2013 Research
Budget

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Organise and
2012/2013 Colloquium
hold one
Budget
Conference on
archives in
partnership with
UWC, UFH,
Archival Platform,
NM Foundation,
NHC and relevant
organisations
during the 3rd
Quarter of the
financial year

Hold two
Colloquium
conferences on
archives
deepening
democracy
during the year.

Programmes

Holding
International
Youth Camp

Conference on
archives in
partnership with
UWC, UFH,
Archival
Platform, NM
Foundation,
NHC and
relevant
organisations

Colloquium on
deepening
democracy

Establishment of Establish an oral
an oral history
history project
project

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Responsible
Business Unit
Overall
targets

12

0

1

1

1

2

1

Overall results

6

0

1

1

1

1

1

Variance

-6 Not Met

0 Not Met

0 Met

0 Met

0 Met

-1 Not Met

0 Met

Met/Not
Met

Due to inadequate
funding

Not planned for this
financial year.

Done in the 1st
quarter not in the 3rd
quarter

Done in the 3rd
quarter with Anne
Frank House
Foundation

Conference done in
the 3rd quarter with
museum partners

1 colloquium done
due to budget
constraints

Done in 1st quarter,
oral history was
established
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Promoting good
and participatory
citizenship and
knowledge
production

Promoting good
and participatory
citizenship and
knowledge
production

Promoting good Development of
and participatory Art in Residence
citizenship and
Catalogue
knowledge
production

Promoting good Development of
and participatory a Camp
citizenship and
Magazine
knowledge
production

Promoting better
understanding of
Nelson Mandela
Legacy

Promoting better Designing of

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Designing of
new exhibition
targeted at
lower primary
learners

Development of
a Catalogue on
the making of
Nelson Mandela

Designing,
Printing and
Publishing of
Copies of
celebrating
ninety years of
Mandela's life

Promoting better
understanding of
Nelson Mandela
Legacy

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Design 1 new

2012/2013 Not budgeted

Design 1
2012/2013 Not budgeted
exhibition
for
targeted at Lower
primary learners
during the 3rd
quarter of the
Financial year.

Develop 1 Camp 2012/2013 Materials
magazine during
Development
the 4th quarter of
Budget
the Financial Year

Develop 1 copy 2012/2013 Materials
of the Art in
Development
Residence
Budget
Catalogue during
the 3rd quarter of
the Financial
year.

Developing 10
2012/2013 Not budgeted
copies of the
for
Making of Nelson
Mandela
Catalogue during
the 1st quarter of
the Financial year

Design, Print and 2012/2013 Materials
Publish 100 copies
Development
of celebrating
Budget
ninety years of
Mandela's life
during the 1st
quarter of the
financial year

Print 100 copies of 2012/2013 Materials
long walk to
Development
freedom as a
Budget
coffee table
book. during the
1st quarter of the
year

year.

Legacy

Printing of
copies of long
walk to freedom
as a coffee
table book

Target

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Programmes

Responsible
Business Unit
Overall
targets

1

1

1

1

10

100

100

Overall results

0

0

1

1

0

0

60

Met/Not
Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

0 Met

0 Met

-10 Not Met

-100 Not Met

-40 Not Met

Variance

Due to in adequate

Due to in adequate
funding

A camp magazine
done in the 4th
quarter

Catalogue done in
3rd quarter

Due to in adequate
Funding

Due to in adequate
Funding

Printed 60 Copies only
due to budget
constraints
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Promoting good Acquisition of
and participatory New units of
citizenship and
books
knowledge
production

Promoting better
understanding of
Nelson Mandela
Legacy

Promoting better
understanding of
Nelson Mandela
Legacy

Programmes

Programmes

Programmes

Distribution of
educational
material to
schools that

Reaching new
districts in the
nine provinces
that the Nelson
Mandela
Museum has
never visited
before(outreach
)

Promoting good Development of
and participatory Library systems
citizenship and
knowledge
production

Programmes

Designing and
printing of an
outdoor
exhibition for the
Qunu Youth and
Heritage Centre.

for

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

2012/2013 Not budgeted
for

Distribute
educational
material to 50
schools that

2012/2013 Artist in
Residence
Budget

Reach 18 new
2012/2013 Travelling
districts in the
Exhibition
nine provinces
budget
that the Nelson
Mandela
Museum has
never visited
before(outreach)
during the
financial year

Acquire 110 new
units of books
during the 2nd
quarter of the
Financial year.

Develop and put 2012/2013 Not budgeted
in place Library
for
systems and
procedures
during the 1st
quarter of the
Financial year

Design and print 1 2012/2013 Not budgeted
outdoor
for
exhibition for the
Nelson Mandela
Qunu Youth and
Heritage Centre
during the 1st
quarter of the
Financial year.

exhibition that will
augment the
current Making of
Nelson Mandela
Exhibition. during
the 3rd quarter of
the Financial
year.

understanding of new exhibition
Nelson Mandela that will
Legacy
augment the
current Making
of Nelson
Mandela
exhibition

Promoting better
understanding of
Nelson Mandela
Legacy

Target

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Programmes

Responsible
Business Unit
Overall
targets

50

18

110

1

1

0

0

51

9

102

Overall results

Variance

1 Met

-9 Not Met

-8 Not Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Visits to schools done
more than as planned

Due to inadequate
funding

Year end came to an
end before the full
110 books could be
acquired

Librarian post not filled
due in adequate
funding

Due to in adequate
funding

funding

Comment
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Programmes

Responsible
Business Unit

Increasing
Knowledge and
understanding of
the museum
collection

Pieces of
artworks on or
related to
Nelson Mandela

intend visiting
the museums

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Acquire 20 pieces 2012/2013 Personnel
of artworks on or
costs Budget
related to Nelson
Mandela

intend visiting the
museums during
the Financial
year.

Target
Overall
targets

20

Overall results

19

Variance

-1 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Year end came to an
end before the full 20
pieces could be
acquired.

Comment
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Implement an
agreed
development
plan for Bunga
and Qunu
upgrade

Implement an
agreed
development
plan for Bunga
and Qunu
upgrade

Ensure secure,

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Security,

Servicing of

Percentage (%)
completion of
Qunu Youth and
Heritage Centre
upgrade.

Percentage (%)
completion of
Bunga building
upgrade.

2012/2013 Personnel
costs budget

2012/2013 Printing and
Stationery

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Ensure that the

2012/2013 Equipment

The upgrading
2012/2013 Qunu
and Renovation
upgrade
of Qunu Youth
budget
and Heritage
Centre must be
75% complete by
the end of the
financial year.

The upgrading of 2012/2013 Bunga
Bunga building
upgrade
must be 50%
budget
complete by the
end of the
financial year.

Establish one(1)
Motor Vehicle
fuel card control
systems and
procedures
during the
financial year

Ensure that all
Museum Assets
are used for the
purpose for which
they were
acquired and
properly
maintained.

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Establishment of
a Motor Vehicle
fuel card control
systems and
procedures

Ensure that all
Establishment of Establish and
Museum Assets
a pre-printed log have in place
are used for the book
four(4) prepurpose for which
printed log book
they were
during the
acquired and
financial year
properly
maintained.

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Target

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Responsible
Business Unit

Strategic Goal 4: Improve the infrastructure, facilities
management and security of museum's buildings,
Equipment and artefacts in all the Museum sites.

1

4

1

75%

50%

Overall
targets

0

0

1

0%

56%

Overall results

Variance

0 Met

-75% Not Met

6% Met

-1 Not Met

-4 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Fire extinguishers

Still seeking Industry
Professional advice
on procurement of
requisite skilled
professionals

Contractor Plans to
complete in
November 2013.

Security, Facilities
and Logistics
Manager not in
place to drive the
Process.

Security, Facilities
and Logistics
Manager not in
place to drive the
Process.

Comment
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safe and clean
environment of
the museum
premises and
assets

Ensure secure,
safe and clean
environment of
the museum
premises and
assets

Build the
museum's
information
technology
capacity into an
effective and
integrated
services to
facilitate the
transformation of
business across
the organisation

Build the
museum's
information
technology
capacity into an
effective and
integrated
services to
facilitate the
transformation of
business across
the organisation

Ensure that all
Museum Assets

facilities and
Logistics

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Security,
facilities and
Logistics

Security,
facilities and

safety equipment
is serviced at least
once during the
financial year

Target

Maintenance
budget

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Percentage (%)
maintenance

Employee
satisfaction with
timeliness of IT
Services (scale
1-5)

Establishment of
a service level
agreement with
IT service
Provider.

2012/2013 Equipment
maintenance
budget

90% of the
maintenance

2012/2013 Buildings and
Grounds

Attain an
2012/2013 Equipment
average rating of
maintenance
4 in employee
budget
satisfaction with
timeliness of IT
Services rendered
during the
financial year.

Establish and
have in place a
Service level
agreement with
an IT service
provider during
the current
financial year

Maintenance of Ensure that the
2012/2013 Equipment
CCTV Cameras CCTV Cameras
maintenance
are serviced at
budget
least five(5) times
during the
financial year

safety
equipment

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Responsible
Business Unit

4

0

5

90%

Overall
targets

2

1

0

65%

Overall results

Variance

-25% Not Met

-2 Not Met

1 Met

-5 Not Met

Met/Not
Met

Slow response from
Dept of Public

50% Accomplished.
Turnaround time by
Service Provider
not satisfactory.

Fast tracked.
Attained during first
quarter

Bunga building still
under construction.

serviced.

Comment
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are used for the
purpose for which
they were
acquired and
properly
maintained.

Logistics

works
conducted
within 48 hours
of being
reported.

Measurable
Performance
Objective (Goal) Measure (KPI)

Responsible
Business Unit
work must be
conducted within
48 hours of being
reported during
the Financial Year

Target

maintenance
budget

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate
Overall
targets
Overall results

Variance

Met/Not
Met
works is creating a
bottleneck in
maintenance

Comment
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Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Establish and
maintain a Curio
Shop by the first
quarter of the
Financial Year
Establish and
2012/2013 Not budgeted
maintain a
for
Restaurant by the
second quarter of
the Financial Year
Attain 50%
2012/2013 Qunu
completion of the
upgrade
establishment of
budget
the executive
accommodation
by the 2nd

Enterprise
To Generate
Establish Curio
Development viable revenue Shop
streams for NMM

Enterprise
To Generate
Establish a
Development viable revenue Restaurant
streams for NMM

Enterprise
To Generate
Percentage
Development viable revenue Completion of
streams for NMM the Establishment
of an Executive
Accommodation

2012/2013 Not budgeted
for

2012/2013 Not budgeted
for

Ensure that the
2012/2013 Personnel
museum
Costs Budget
Accommodation
and
Conferencing
obtains grading
from at least
one(1) grading
institution during
the Financial year

Target

Enterprise
To Generate
Acquire Vending Acquire one(1)
Development viable revenue Machines
Vending
streams for NMM
Machines during
the Financial
year.

Enterprise
To Generate
Grading of
Development viable revenue Accommodation
streams for NMM and
Conferencing

Responsible
Business Unit

Strategic Goal 5: Leverage NMM value proposition for
economic opportunities for the Museum and Communities

1

1

1

1

50%

Overall
targets
Overall results

0%

0

0

0

2

Variance

-50% Not Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

1 Met

Met/Not
Met

Awaiting
implementation of
Qunu upgrade

However a
feasibility study was
conducted.
Recommendations
yet to be
implemented.

However a
feasibility study was
conducted.
Recommendations
yet to be
implemented.

R32 000 budget
that excludes
transportation cost
not available

Obtained grading
from South African
grading Council
and AA Grading

Comment
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Measurable
Objective
(Goal)

Performance
Measure (KPI)

Establish Internet
Cafe by the 2nd
quarter of the
Financial year

quarter of the
Financial year.

Target

2012/2013 No budget

Base Year Funding
2011/12
Estimate

Mrs Pumla Madiba
Chairperson of Council
Nelson Mandela Museum
Date: 31 May 2013

Mr Bayanda Nyengule
Chief Executive Officer
Nelson Mandela Museum
Date: 31 May 2013

1

1

1

1

Overall results

Approved By:

Partner and
2012/2013 Personnel
maintain
Costs budget
relationship with
at least one(1)
Tourism Enterprise
Project during the
financial year

Enterprise
To enhance
Partnering with
Development guests
Tourism Enterprise
experience,
Project
build a sense of
ownership and
good relations
with
communities

Overall
targets

Prepared By:

Install and
2012/2013 Personnel
operate a Speed
Costs budget
point by the 2nd
quarter of the
Financial year

Enterprise
To Generate
Installation of a
Development viable revenue Speed Point
streams for NMM

Enterprise
To Generate
Establishing online Establish and
2012/2013 Not budgeted
Development viable revenue Reservation
have in place
for
streams for NMM System
online reservation
system by the 4th
quarter of the
Financial year

Enterprise
To Generate
Establish Internet
Development viable revenue Cafe
streams for NMM

Responsible
Business Unit

1

0

0

1

Variance

0 Met

-1 Not Met

-1 Not Met

0 Met

Met/Not
Met

Signed a SLA with
TEP

Proposals
submitted to
Banking Institutions
and quotations
obtained.

However quotes
are available
pending finalisation
of the process.

Internet Cafe in
place. However
funds are needed
to purchase data
bundles.

Comment
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PART C: PROGRAMME OVERVIEW AND ACTIVITIES
PROGRAMME 1: Corporate Governance

Mfuneko Mdludlu
Governance and administration
This programme is responsible for overall institutional co-ordination, accountability, planning,
policy development, monitoring and risk management. The main entities involved in this
programme are Council, Office of the CEO, and the Corporate Services Function.
The broad Objectives of this programme include:
Ensuring strategy, policy, oversight and accountability;
Ensuring organisational sustainability and accountability;
Co-ordinating the institutional functioning;
Providing adequate support to council and ensuring implementation of council
strategic and policy directions; and
Rendering a corporate services function in all respects.
In the period under review the following were the major focus points of the programme:
Strengthening governance and sustaining the achievement of a further unqualified
audit;
Addressing issues raised by the Auditor General with the aim of achieving a clean Audit
by 2014;
Strengthening organisational capacity and positioning – including clarification and
implementation of the performance frameworks;
Strengthening the policy environment and compliance aspects; and
Timely alerting the department to the expiry of the Council Term.
In line with these priorities the following progress was achieved:
Another unqualified audit was achieved;
There was an engagement of an Internal Audit Service Provider which commenced
implementation of its three year rolling plan and reported to the Audit committee
accordingly;
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The Supply Chain Management policy was implemented, even though there were
glitches owing to many factors including the still outstanding appointment of an
appropriate person for this function and related issues (specifically around the use of the
80:20 point system, and interpretation & application of tender thresholds); and
Attempts were made to capacitate the museum through the Recruitment of the
Security, Facilities and Logistics Manager, and Procurement Manager which is currently
at short listing stage. The Museum CEO‟s position was also successfully filled during the
period under review thus bringing stability at the Museum.
In the discharge of its mandate the Museum Council held three(3) of its four(4) statutory
required meetings during the period under review, in one of which it reviewed and revised
the Institution‟s Strategic Plan and its attendant Annual Performance Plan.

Council and Council Committees
This is the current NMM Council together with its council structures. Below this structure are
the terms of reference for various committees of council though not limited to.

NMM Council

Content
Committee

Finance
Committee

Audit
Committee
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Content Committee

Dr Phumza Dyantyi
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Gives advice to council on strategic heritage policy matters
Ensures alignment of heritage policies to the vision and mission of nmm
Oversees the audit and collection register of nmm
Advises council on disposal of nmm artefacts
Advises council on disposal of nmm artefacts
Makes decisions on loan requests
Oversees the development of marketing policies

Audit Committee

Prof. Lindelwa Majova-Songca
•
•
•
•
•

Oversees internal & external audit function
Examines the annual financial statement before submission to council and auditor-general
Reviews the annual report so that it presents a balanced record of nmm
Monitors the risk appetite of nmm
Monitors achievements against corporate governance standards on internal controls
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Finance Committee

Ms Andiswa Vikilahle
•
•
•
•
•

Oversees financial planning and management
Monitors financial performance of nmm
Monitors compliance to financial objectives as set out by council
in line with the pfma and treasury regulations
Reviews quarterly financial focusts
Approves the virement of funds

Institutional Development Committee

Prince Mlimandlela Ndamase
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Oversees human resources policy development
Ensures manpower needs and plans
Support the organisations vision
Ensures that institutional development imperatives are accomplished
Ensures that an organisational structure supportive of the vision of nmm
Is in place
Ensures the upkeep of security, facilities and logistics
Ensures that the ict arhitecture is deployed
Ensures that registry services to support NMM as a knowledge institution are in place
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Council Members

Mr Cecyl Esau

Dr Bheki Mngomezulu

Advocate Patekile Holomisa

Top Management Structure

CEO

COO
Executive
Assistant

Senior
Manager
Marketing

SFLM

Senior
Manager
Enterprise
Development

Senior
Manager
Programmes

Executive
Manager
Corporate
Services

The management of Nelson Mandela Museum is jointly and severally accountable to the
Accounting Authority of the museum through the Office of the CEO. From the above top
management structure, the challenge that the museum is facing is the filling in of the positions
of the COO together with the senior Manager Enterprise Development. This therefore, leaves
the museum management with no option other than to priorities in the filling of vacant posts
due to budget constraints.
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MIDDLE MANAGEMENT
Below is the second layer of Nelson Mandela Museum Management constituting the middle
management level.

Pumeza Mandela:
Manager Heritage and Conservation

Nokuzola Mashalaba:
Accountant

Tembile Mkhohliwe:
Financial Controller

David Mqamelo:
Manager: Human Resource
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SECURITY FACILITIES AND LOGISTICS

Nonceba Sifika

The purpose of this programme is to ensure that the museum is secure, its facilities are fit for
purpose, and that the museum operations are adequately supported logistically.
Key deliverables for the programme in the year under review included:
-

Bhunga Building upgrade program planned for completion within a period of 24 months
ending on 08 November 2013;

-

Continued storage of Museum artefacts safely and securely in a Vault;

-

Proper securing of other assets in the containers at Qunu Youth and Heritage Centre;

-

Continued accommodation of all Bhunga employees in seven parkhome offices on a
temporal basis.

This programme is also responsible for managing Service Level Agreements entered into
between the Nelson Mandela Museum and Service providers providing Gardening Services,
Cleaning Services and Security Services.
All three Service Level Agreements are in place.
Through this programme, the Museum works in liaison with the Department of Public Works for
maintenance and repairs work above the value of R30 000.00.
The museum fleet consisting of four vehicles(two bakkies and two busses )
is also managed through this programme.
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PROGRAMME 2: Marketing and Communication

Nokuzola Tetani

Brand Management
The Marketing Department continues to profile the Nelson Mandela Museum Brand Nationally
and Internationally, using various platforms that include participation in tourism shows such as
the tourism indaba; Engagement of stakeholders through participation in stakeholder events;
Youth engagement through multi-media road shows, Sourcing of branding material, etc. :


Tourism Indaba is an international tourism expo held annually in Durban which attracts
major tourism players around the world. The museum participated in indaba 2012 which
led to Fourteen new inbound and outbound tour operators packaging the museum in
their tour iteneraries and have already brought tour groups from different countries
which include Absolute Tours, Protours, Atlas Springbok and Tourvest specialising in
Eastern and Western European tourism markets such as Germany, Belgium, Denmark
and France.
Several international media networks made bookings to film the museum sites and the
story of Nelson Mandela. Some interviews were held on-site with Zambia Television and
Mamba Media which recorded a documentary on Nelson Mandela Museum and
published it online- http://bit.ly/nelsonmandelalinks/



For the first time the Nelson Mandela Museum was invited and allocated 21 m2 space at
no cost to participate and exhibit at the National Tourism Careers Expo held in East
London in September. This gave the Nelson Mandela Museum exposure to senior
secondary schools and tertiary institutions that offer tourism nationally.
The Nelson Mandela Museum was also invited to exhibit at the International Liberation
Archives Conference in East London in October 2012. The museum exhibition attracted
a lot of historians, veterans and learners. The South African History Online promised to
loan an exhibition to the Nelson Mandela Museum.

44

NELSON MANDELA MUSEUM ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13



The Nelson Mandela Museum had an opportunity to host an ANC Centenary Flame on
16 May 2012, as part of the ANC Centenary celebrations. This attracted South African
national media which include live television interviews.



To attract learner audiences the Nelson Mandela Museum embarked on Multi-media
roadshows that seek to engage and encourage debates and discussions amongst
learners. Nine schools from various regions of the Eastern Cape participated during the
reporting period.



Branding material is one of the most effective tools to profile the Nelson Mandela
Museum brand, and was purchased for various activities that include Indaba 2012,
Mandela Day, Exhibition launches around the country, international youth camps as well
as for the art in residency programme to create awareness and continuous building of
the Nelson Mandela Brand.



To maintain stakeholder relations, the Nelson Mandela Museum worked and
participated in various stakeholder events such as the launch of the „Home of Legends‟
marketing campaign launched by the Eastern Cape Premier‟s Office; African National
Congress (provincial and national); Ingquza Hill commemoration, a DSRAC program;
Inkwanca Municipality when launching „In conversation; Nelson Mandela and Albert
Luthuli „ exhibition in Sterkstroom; CATHSSETA offered customer service training; Mvezo,
Qunu and Mqhekezweni traditional leaderships, Mbizana Local Municipality and
Nkantolo Development Trust and Ludeke Mission in delivering Mandela day program.



Events have proved to be the most popular tools to market the Nelson Mandela
Museum as they attract a lot of international media. The Nelson Mandela Museum
implemented a month-long celebration of Nelson Mandela‟s 94th birthday as a strategy
to get media attraction throughout the month of July 2012. The series of activities had
various themes such as „Remembering our heroes‟ a program that focuses on the
liberation struggle unsung heroes; „Identification, promotion and preservation of sites of
historical significance associated to Nelson Mandela‟ such as Ludeke Methodist Mission
where Nelson Mandela and Winnie Mandela got married in 1958; engagement of
learners in tourism development whereby schools that offer tourism competed in
identifying heritage sites in their areas and development of heritage routes and tour
itineraries. This program delivery had tangible outcomes that benefited the homesteads
that were identified by the museum, as those families benefited from the government‟s
social support programs. An RDP house was built for one destitute family. ID documents
were issued for another destitute family. A partnership with SABC for the entire month of
July was achieved.

The Nelson Mandela Museum‟s 12th anniversary celebrations series of events were held
over a two-day period. The activities included the launch of German Development Bank
sponsored sporting facilities, fun walk from Madiba‟s residence that symbolized his
release from prison, debates and discussions as well as the film festival that aimed at
engaging learners on democracy and human rights.
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Communication and Publicity
The Nelson Mandela Museum reached more than 50 Million people around the world through
various media networks. Numerous press releases available on the museum website were
distributed to several global media networks communicating compelling museum programs,
and achieved the following:
*More than 200 print and electronicmedia articles exceeding the annual target of 80.
* The museum also featured in London Guardian, Sunday times, City press, Leading venues, The
new age, Public Sector Magazine, Beeld, Die Burger, Volksbaald, Cape Argus, Cape Times,
Citizen, Mail and Guardian, Daily Dispatch, Sowetan, Herald Newspaper, YOU – MAGAZINE, etc.
*The links also featured the museum:http://www.4-traders.com/SASOL-LIMITED1413409/news/Sasol-Limited-Sasol-New-Signatures-2012-information-sessions-underway14257267/ , http://www.dispatch.co.za/so-much-to-see-do-in-the-ec/,
http://www.sabc.co.za/news/a/f47a83804b449d22ac86fcd46415826d/ANC-centenary-torchtouches-down-in-Eastern-Cape-20120516, http://ewn.co.za/2012/07/16/Celebrations-forMandela-day-start, http://gulfnews.com/news/world/other-world/frail-nelson-mandela-turns-941.1049821,http://www.modernghana.com/news/406037/1/mandela-museum-stages-youth-artexhibit-for-icons-.html, http://www.theaustralian.com.au/news/breaking-news/nelson-mandelaset-to-turn-94-in-private/story-fn3dxix6-1226427263791etc






The museum enjoyed wide coverage in broadcast media such as SABC, Zambia
Television, China TV, etv for prime time news and short documentaries.
Four quarterly newsletters were developed and distributed.
A contract with a brochure distribution management company was entered intoto
distribute volumes of Nelson Mandela Museum brochures at strategic points around the
country was achieved.
Brochures and other marketing material such as DVD‟s were also acquired and
distributed on Indaba 2012 and other expos, stakeholder events, exhibition launches
and also on site.

Public Relations
The Nelson Mandela Museum continues to position itself globally as one of the leading players in
digital media, taking advantage of the evolution of new media to attract and engage diverse
audiences.
The museum adopted aggressive strategies such as the implementation of highly responsive
digital media campaigns to direct traffic to the museum website which archived the following:



70 935 website page viewers and 20 414 unique visitors showing a 33% increase from the
previous year, responding to targeted 12 website updates, a target that has been over
achieved as more than 20 numerous updates were made. Events calendars were also
produced and uploaded on the Nelson Mandela Museum website.
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The world is showing tremendous interest in the museum. This is based in the evident
significant growth in the museum social network following.
3 736 fans on facebook and 534 533 friends of fans who also receive feeds and
feedback of the Nelson Mandela Museum updates were achieved.
6 041 twitter following and followers was also achieved. This is made out of the museum
fans and those that are being followed by the museum.
8 070 viewers of the museum videos that are loaded on you tube was achieved as well.
There is a challenge on video uploading due to the video editing skills inhouse.



Visitor feedback systems that include visitor satisfaction surveys are/were done quarterly,
visitor comments register and social networks indicate utmost satisfaction of visitors.
However a few complaints were received from few tour operators complaining about
the nature of exhibitions that are currently on display in Qunu. They expect exhibitions
that are dedicated to Nelson Mandela. Aggressive promotions of open –air heritage
and launch of the Heritage Trail and village tours have been achieved to mitigate the
above.
These complaints could also be attributed to the lack of understanding of the purpose
of the establishment of each site of the museum.
Demand for filming the museum and its associated sites continues to grow. The museum
featured in prominent television programmes, such as Top Billing, Max Du Preez‟s MNET
Afrikaans Programme, Peter Higgins‟s 1TV Network, Stephanus Kempen –Welela Studios‟
Talk SA for SABC 2, Stephanus Rable Production for Kyknet. German Television- Leone
March (documentary), Chinese Television etc.

Tours
The Nelson Mandela Museum continues attracting tourists and special interest groups from
around the world. Major highlights for the reporting period include the following:


Facilitation of Mr Eddie Izzard‟s 27 days Charity Marathon from Mvezo to Mqhekezweni.
Mr Eddie Izzard is a renowned British comedian and professional marathon runner. He
was followed around by a British television crew that benefited the museum. As part of
the museum facilitation performing groups such as Umkhwelo(a group of horse riders in
traditional gear), traditional dancers, story tellers and women who prepared traditional
cuisine for tour enhancement and cultural showcasing were paid generously for their
participation.



13 611 visitors were registered in the museum visitor‟s register, showing a decrease of
68.4% compared to 43 050 visitations achieved the previous year. This decrease is
attributed to closure of Bhunga Building as well as inadequate visitor registration system
in Qunu. The visitor registration system has been upgraded for proper visitor registration,
which will continue to reflect a true situation. The museum visitor statistics in Qunu
excluded weddings, conferences, sport groups, meetings, church services and camps.
Gate entrance register only focussed on drivers excluding vehicle occupants‟ as well
pedestrian visitors.
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PROGRAMME 3: Heritage and Conservation Department

Noel Solani
The Nelson Mandela Museum Heritage and Conservation Department is mandated to engage
in various educational and cultural programmes, which are aimed at sharing the resources that
are linked to President Nelson Mandela. Some of these projects are executed through
partnerships with other institutions. There are five key areas of delivery and they are as follows:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

Product Development: development of education support material such as learning
guides, catalogues based on our exhibitions and work in general as well as production
of worksheets for learners.
Leadership Institute: Under the leadership institute there are 3 camps that are alternate
camps held each year that focus on young people at school and out of school, i.e.
youth between the ages of 14 to 26.
Outreach programmes: Travelling exhibitions and school visits.
Intellectual agenda: the focus of this is to stimulate debate on heritage and the legacy
of Nelson Mandela and his contemporaries through seminars, conferences, symposiums
and continuous research.
Heritage resources: This focuses on the collection, protection and preservation of
material that reflects the legacy of Nelson Mandela.

The following is the report for the financial year, 2012/13 of the Nelson Mandela Museums‟
public programming.
1. Education
In the reporting year, the department participated in 3 camps that form part of the Leadership
Institute:
1.1 Youth Camp In Germany
In April 2012, the Nelson Mandela Museum participated in an International Youth Camp that
was held in Lower Saxony, Germany. The Museum sent 5 learners from 5 provinces to
participate in the camp. This is a result of a partnership between the museum and the Anne
Frank House, in Lower Saxony, Germany. The camp attracts participants from 9 European
countries and South Africa is the 10th country.This camp empowers young people with a better
understanding of diversity and instils in them a sense of justice, respect for human rights and
dignity. Most of the South African participants in this came is their first time out of South Africa
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and therefore affords them an opportunity to get a glimpse of the world outside their
immediate environment.
1.2 International Youth Camp
In October 2012, the Nelson Mandela Museum with its partners from the Fran Anne House,
Lower Saxony in Germany hosted an international youth camp at its youth site in Qunu,
Mthatha. There were 70 participants in the camp and were drawn from the following countries:
Name of Country

Name of Participant

Name of Country

Name of Participant

Botswana

Ms Koketso Rankgopo

Germany

Wiebke (Dorothea)
Brockmann

Lesotho

Matseliso Mohapi

Josephine Seeler

Namibia

Kleopass Nghikefelwa

Eike Eggers

Zimbwabwe

Kudzai Mafuwe

Sinah (Penelope)
Schafer

Zambia

Ngenda Konoso

Greta Theilen

Malawi

Linda Esther Kolomba

Friederike (Irene)
Seesko

Kenya

Nasra Ahmed Sharif
Mohammed

Erik Jahn

Free State

Bonolo Modisenyane

Sarah Majer

Mpumalanga

Amon Moeketsi

Joy Kubler

Gauteng

Palesa Mokoana

Sina Freund

Limpopo

Vusani Nosengani

Mehdiye Yilmaz

Eastern Cape

Siyabulela Mandela

-

Sina Freund

Kwazulu Natal

Sifundo Sosibo

Belarus

Yuliya Malashkevich

Northern Cape

Nkaelang Morweng

North West

Mathapelo Koena

Poland

Kacper Konior

Israel

Yana Adamovich

Netherlands

Luuk van Meijel

Iga Bunalska

Marloes Kempkens

Monika Radzienta

Roxanne Minten

Mor Shani

Slovakia

Blanka Elek

Amit Levy

Laszlo Janos Lelkes

Sigal Baidutch

Aniko Kučerova
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Name of Country

Name of Participant

Russia

Maria Dunaeva
Valerii Novikov
Dimitrii Sokolov

Lithuania

Kristina Kruopyte
Indre Pilkauskaite
Ignas Nemanis

Camp Leaders and Coordinators
South Africa

Brandon David Murugan

South Africa

Zukisa Madybi

Germany

Anka Johow

Germany

Jan-Hinnerk Scholljegerdes

Germany

Anja Schade

Germany

Ariane Kisselmann

Germany

Mark Muhlhaus

South Africa

Esinako Minikazi Hintsa

South Africa

Qiniso (Klinka) Van Damme

South Africa

Lunga Poho

South Africa

Pumeza Mandela

South Africa

Bongiwe Qotoyi

South Africa

Nozodwa Matikinca

The theme of the international youth camp was titled, “learning from the past, working together
for the future.” Young people participated in the following modules:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

Music
Drama
Photography
Documentation
Art
Archives and
Care work

Each participant had to choose one module in which they could fully learn and participate.
However, participants who chose care work, also participated in the art project. The 20 pieces
of artwork that were produced by participants were installed at Bedford Orthopaedic Hospital‟s
children‟s ward, in Mthatha. At the hospital, participants also fixed and painted children‟s park.
At Mqhekezweni participants cleaned the graveyard of the great house.
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1.3 Artist in Residency
On the 15 May to 15 July 2012, the Museum hosted an Arts incubator programme. The
programme attracted out of school youths from the Eastern Cape that have an interest in
developing their art skills in order to become entrepreneurs. During the programme, artworks
were produced and launched on the last day of the camp. The artworks were exhibited for 3
months at the Nelson Mandela Youth and Heritage Centre for public viewing. The following
young people participated:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Phozisile Mini from Port Elizabeth
Mangaza Siphondo from Butterworth
Naniwe Mtshemla from Queenstown
Pule Mangqobe from Mthatha
Ongeziwe Jubaze from Qumbu

All our participants submitted their work to the Sasol Art signature, a national competition of
young artists in South Africa. The works of two of our participants were selected and their work
will appear on the annual Sasol Art signature awards catalogue.
2. Intellectual Agenda
The Nelson Mandela Museum subscribes to the concept of lifelong learning through the
following activities:
2.1 Colloquium on Archives Deepening Democracy
In July 2012 as part of celebrating Nelson Mandela‟s birthday, the museum in partnership with
the Nelson Mandela Centre of Memory at the Nelson Mandela Foundation hosted a colloquium
on “Archives Deepening Democracy” at the Nelson Mandela Museum Youth and Heritage
Centre, Qunu. The two days colloquium had 100 participants, and this colloquium was a feeder
to the conference on the same theme that was hosted by the National Heritage Council in
partnership with the Nelson Mandela Museum, Nelson Mandela Centre of Memory, University of
Fort Hare, University of the Western Cape and the Archival Platform at the University of Cape
Town. The conference attracted delegates from Southern Africa and abroad.
2.2 Curatorial Fellowship
During this period, the department hosted Mr Benjamin Bruhwiler, a doctoral student from
Michigan State University, USA between June and July 2012. Mr Bruhwiler‟s fellowship was
facilitated by our partnership with Michigan State University Museum that allows one fellow from
Michigan State University to visit us on a research programme that we jointly identified. While in
South Africa, Mr Bruhwiler participated in the organisation of the colloquium and the
international youth camp activities.
3. Material Development
Nelson Mandela‟s life story is an important story in the history of South Africa and the world,
particularly as it pertains to specific values such as those of freedom, humanity, resilience,
peace and reconciliation. During this period the department has produced the following:
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3.1 Reprint of Long Walk to Freedom Coffee Table Book
The museum reprinted 60 coffee table books based on the first museum exhibition in 2000. The
coffee table book is sold to members of the public and all 60 copies that were reprinted were
sold out.
4. Outreach Programme
The museum outreach programme is aimed at taking the museum to the people regardless of
their location. This has been done through the following activities

4.1 School Visits
As part of the outreach programme, the department has visited 51 schools in Mthatha and
surroundings to introduce the museum activity book.
5.Exhibitions
Exhibitions are the dominant interpretation tool of the Nelson Mandela Museum.
During this period the museum housed 2 exhibitions at Bhunga Building in Mthatha: titled
Mandela and Luthuli exhibition - focuses on in conversation made by both leaders during the
apartheid years and towards the adoption of the armed struggle. The Making of Nelson
Mandela exhibition focuses on the “triumph of the human spirit” and the imprint Nelson
Mandela left in South Africa, the continent and the world

5.1 In Conversation: Mandela and Luthuli Exhibition
The multi site exhibition was exhibited at the following venues:
On the 16 May 2012 the exhibition was launched at Sterkstroom Museum in the Eastern
Cape Province. Before it travelled to Sterkstroom it was hosted for a period of 6 months
Middleburg Museum.
On the 28 May 2012 the exhibition was launched at Khgodwana Cultural Village in
Mpumalanga and has been popular with schools and the local community.
On the 18 September 2012 the exhibition was launched at McGregor Museum, Kimberly
in the Northern Cape.
On 10 December 2012, the museum installed the exhibition at Vryburg Museum in the
North West Province.
The Mandela and Luthuli exhibition titled “Nelson Mandela and Albert Luthuli In Conversations”
focuses on both President Nelson Mandela and Chief Albert Luthuli as Nobel Peace Prize
winners, with Chief Luthuli receiving the prize on the verge of the armed struggle and President
Mandela during the transitional period to democracy.
5.2 Nelson Mandela Photographic Exhibition
This exhibition is currently hosted at the Nelson Mandela academic hospital. The exhibition is
popular with both staff, patients and during school term with learners doing their own research.
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5.3 Dear Mr Mandela, Dear Mrs Parks: Children’s Exhibition
During this period, the exhibition was on show at Albany Museum, it attracted both members of
the public and students. As a result of the presence of this exhibition at the nearby Rhodes
Campus, we believe that it had an influence on the renaming of one of the university
residences after Mrs Rosa Parks, who ignited the bus boycott in Montgomery and the civil rights
movement in the United States of America.
5.4 Long Walk to Freedom exhibition
The “Long walk to Freedom” travelling exhibition was the first museum exhibition mounted in
preparation for the museum opening in 2000. When the exhibition was de-installed after seven
years of its existence, the Reakgona Cultural Youth Centre in Kraaipan in the North West
requested that the museum loan the exhibition to them. The aim was to launch the museum
with this exhibition while Reakgona Cultural Youth Centre was still fundraising and conducting
research for a permanent exhibition for their own museum. The Kraaipan area is full of historical
sites of the Anglo-Boer war and is about 100 km out of Mahikeng. The exhibition continues to be
the main exhibition of the Kraaipan Museum and the museum continues to support the youth of
Kraaipan in terms of training and education programmes.
6. Research
During this period, the unit was busy with continuous investigation and engagement with
conservation and analysis of museum collection. Some of the artefacts were donated
anonymously. The research unit aims to complete researching the provenance of this collection
by the end of 2014 so that the museum can have a complete data of who made the artefact,
when was it made, where was it made, why was it made, and by whom was it donated.
An oral history project was also started in order to provide in depth information around these
artefact.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
This report was prepared as per the Treasury Regulations 27.1.6, 27.1.7 and 27.1.10(b) &(c) for
public entities issued in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999(Act No 1of 1999) as
amended by Act 29 of 1999.
Audit Committee Members and Attendance
The Audit Committee of the Nelson Mandela Museum consists of four members, two of which
have been appointed from the Museum Accounting Authority and the other two invited from
outside the Public Service as independent members in accordance with the prescripts of
sections 51(1)(a)(ii), 76(4)(d) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (No. 1 of
1999) as amended by Act 29 of 1999 as regulated through Treasury Regulations.
The composition of the Committee is set out below:
Name of member

No. of meetings

1. Ms Lindelwa Majova/Songca (Chairperson)
2. Ms Lindiwe Gadd
3. Ms L. Khangala
4. Mr Don. Saunders

2
2
2
1

During the year under review the Nelson Mandela Museum had an Audit Committee consisting
of two members drawn from the Museum‟s Accounting Authority membership as well as two
professionally independent members drawn from outside the Public Service. Although the
process of appointing independent members outside the public service was completed in
December 2011 with Ms L. Kangala and Mr D. Saunders being appointed, Mr Don Saunders only
confirmed his acceptance of the appointment in February 2013 hence only one meeting was
attended. Other persons who attended the Audit committee meeting included the CEO, Mr
Khwezi Mpumlwana, who, after resignation, was replaced by Mr B. Nyengule and the CFO, Mr
Mfuneko Mdludlu.
Audit committee`s responsibility
The audit committee supports the Nelson Mandela Museum`s Accounting Authority in fulfilling its
oversight responsibility relating to internal controls, risks management, financial management
and compliance with laws and regulations. The committee reports that it has adopted
appropriate formal terms of reference as its charter. The committee, also reports that is has
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as
contained therein. Accordingly, the committee operates in accordance with the terms of the
said charter and is satisfied that it has discharged its responsibilities in compliance therewith.
The effectiveness of internal controls
The systems of internal control are designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are
safeguarded; and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the
Public Finance Management Act, the internal audit provides the committee and management
with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective.
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This is achieved by means of a risk management process, as well as the identification of
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.
Although the Committee received and considered reports of the Internal Audit Function
towards the end of the Financial year due to the delayed conclusion and signing of the
contract of engagement, there were no reports of significant or material non compliance with
the prescribed policies and procedures brought to its attention either by the Museum
Management or Internal Audit Service Provider, as well as the Audit report on the Annual
Financial Statements. Accordingly, the committee reports that the systems of internal control for
the year under review were efficient and effective. The committee however took note of the
matters raised in the Auditor-General`s report and management resolve to address such issues.
Evaluation of financial statements
The Audit Committee has;
reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements to be included in the entity`s
annual report with the report of the Auditor General.
reviewed the Auditor-General`s management report and management responses.

On behalf of the Audit Committee I concur and accept the Auditor- General`s conclusions on
the Annual Financial Statements and I am of the opinion that the Audited Annual Financial
Statements be accepted and be read together with the report of the Auditor General.

Professor Lindelwa Majova-Songca
Chairperson Audit Committee
Nelson Mandela Museum
Date: 31 May 2013
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
Nelson Mandela Staff Complement
Nelson Mandela Museum has a staff complement of 28employees. The museum feels honoured
and treasured to have such a committed and dedicated persons in its employ

L-R: Unathi Songca, Fumanekile Wisani, Mtshutshisi Tyalakhulu, Ncebakazi Ncapayi, Nozodwa Matikinca,
Zibekile Mrebelele, Sibulele Makuta, Nolubabalo Ngxekana, Siviwe Mazwana, Tembakazi Mvitshane,
Monwabisi Majali, Ncediwe Ndima, Zimisele Gamakulu

1. Human Resource Department:
The Human Resource Departmentis the heart of the Institution and a vital organ of the Museum.
Its aim is to ensure clear and undiluted human capital management of the Museum and to
ensure that the stakeholders of the Museum are kept informed about its activities. Importantly,
another function of this department is to contribute towards the Museum‟s development and to
effectively deliver on the Museum„s mandate through retention, and attraction of human
capital as well as balance and harmonize the labour relations of the Organisation.
NMM being a knowledge-based and living organisation, its human capital is critical in ensuring
the success of the Museum initiatives.
The following are the major highlights of the Human Resource Department for the 2012/2013
financial year:
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Training & Development
Recruitment and selection
Policy reviews
Organisational development
Proper handling of Resignations and Terminations
Human Resource Alignment
Addressing Labour Relations Matters
Developing/Adopting the Performance Management System
Carrying out Wellness programmes
Adhering to Employment Equity
Revising/Implementing Leave schedule
2. Training & development
There has been good progress in the training and development of staff in general. The
development and changing of the mindset as part of training is of paramount importance and
needs to continue as a priority for the Organisation. The Growing need of Technical skills and
capacity building is prevailing from time to time.
NMM officials were also developed in areas of Tour Guiding by a company called Chatseta.
3. Recruitment and Selection
The organisation has advertised one position in the year under review as follows:
Chief Executive Officer
The appointment of the ONE position was successful.
Positions were filled as follows:
Department

Position

Incumbent

Date started

Governance

Chief Executive Officer

B. Nyengule

01-10-2012

Internship Programme:
Department

Position

Incumbent

Date Started

Marketing

Tour Guiding Intern

N. Ncapai

01-04-2012 (renewed)

Marketing

Tour Guiding Intern

Z.Gamakhulu

01-04-2012 (renewed)

Marketing

Communication Intern

F. Wisani

01 May 2012

Programmes

Temp Researcher

S Mtshemla

Feb 2012 (renewed)

Programmes

Temp Researcher

I Gwaze

March 2012 (renewed)

Marketing

Public Relations

U. Songca

May 2012 to May 2013

FIXED TERM
CONTRACTS
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4. Organisational Development
Interns are all placed under Departments according to their expertise and field of studies with a
close mentorship of the Head of Departments, e.g Marketing, and Qunu Heritage Centre.
Reporting lines have been addressed in order to monitor the performance and personnel
development areas.
There is challenge in the filling of the vacant positions in the Organogram due to budget
constraints and it is creating capacity gap and is causing multi- tasking in certain areas.

5. Resignations and Terminations
During the year under review one resignation was received from the Chief Executive Officer
effective from the 04June 2012.
6. Human Resources Alignment
The museum has engaged a consultant to draft a Remuneration and Retention Policy.
Alignment of museum staff salaries with a proper grading system was conducted. Two grading
systems were recommended: Equate System and Patterson Grading System. The exercise was
approved by the museum council and the Patterson Grading System was recommended and
found suitable for museum employees. The implementation thereof has been put on hold until
there are enough funds to align salaries for all Museum employees. This matter requires an
urgent attention.
7. Labour Relations Matters
There has been a stable labour relations within the organisation; there are two Shop stewards
deployed by NEHAWU within the Institution.
Disciplinary Cases
No disciplinary processes had been instituted to employees in the year under review.
CCMA
The museum has one CCMA whereby the former CEO has subjected the museum to CCMA for
his claim of constructive dismissal by Nelson Mandela Museum
Grievances
Monthly staff meetings are held on monthly basis and the agenda comes from employees and
management. The management meetings are taking place every second week. These
meetings assist the Institution in performance monitoring and as a 360 degree feedback
mechanism.
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8. Performance Management System
The performance management system policy has been approved by the museum council.
Each manager has a performance agreement with clear Key Performance Areas linked to the
Strategy. Performance discussions are done twice a year on a six months basis by the CEO and
HOD‟s with their direct reports. Quarterly reports are submitted by each manager to the CEO‟s
office to monitor the performance of the individual and of the Institution‟s annual targets..
However, the Quarterly and Annual Performance Reports are evidence of performance for the
2012/2013 financial year.
9. Human Resources Policy Review
No review of the Human Resource Policies took place during the year under review.
10. Workforce Profile
Categories

M

Chief Executive Officer
Executive Manager Corporate Services
Senior Manager Programs

F

R

N

Total

1

BA

SA

1

1

BA

SA

1

1

BA

SA

1

Senior Manager Marketing

1

BA

SA

1

Education & Materials Development Manager

1

BA

SA

1

Accountant

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

1

Human Resources Manager

1

Executive Assistant to CEO.

1

BA

SA

1

Heritage Tours Co-ordinator

1

BA

SA

1

Finance Secretary

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

1

Admin Officer

1

Admin Officer –Qunu

1

BA

SA

1

Community Liaison Officer

1

BA

SA

1

Heritage Conservator

1

BA

SA

1

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

1

BA

SA

2

BA

SA

1

1

BA

SA

3

2

BA

SA, ZIM A

2

BA

SA

1

Communication and Media Officer
Security officer

1

Design, Graphics and Website Officer

1

Caretaker

1

General Assistant

1

Education Outreach Officer

1

Financial Controller

1

Tour Guide Interns

2

Temp Researcher x 2
Exhibitions Assistant

1

Total

14

1

14

28

M – Male; F – Female; R – Race (BA-Black African); ZIMBABWE AFRICAN (ZIM A), N – Nationality
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11. Staff Wellness
During the year under review the Bhunga upgrade project was still in progress and the stay at
Qunu continued to create a lot of stress to the Museum staff due to travelling 66 kilometres to
and from work daily. The Nelson Mandela Museum provided free transport for Museum staff for
these travels. The change in working conditions from normal offices to parkhomes and the
network challenges were among the challenges experienced by employees.
12. Staff Vacation Leave
Name

Annual Leave days

Bal as at 31 March
2013

CEO

36

18

CFO

36

24

Senior Manager -Programmes

36

24

Senior Manager- Marketing

36

24

Communication and Media Officer

24

16

Human Resource Manager

36

24

Education Material Development Manager

36

24

Executive Assistant to CEO

36

24

Accountant

36

12

Financial Controller

36

24

Researcher -Temporary

24

0

Education Material Development and Outreach Officer

24

16

Heritage Conservator

24

14

Security Officer

24

10

Community Liaison Officer

24

16

Design, Graphics and Website Officer

24

16

Finance Secretary

24

16

Administration Officer- Bhunga

24

16

Tour Guide Intern

24

0

Care Taker - Qunu

24

16

Researcher-Temporary

24

0

Tour Guide Intern

24

16

Communication Liaison Officer

24

16

Administration Officer - Qunu

24

16

Exhibitions Officer

24

16

General Assistant

24

16
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13. Schedule of Human Resources Cost
Item
Salaries
Benefits
Total

Cost
6 568 534
540 110
7 108 644

14. Staff Skills Development
Position
Staff
CEO
Financial Controller
Executive Assistant -CEO

Number Trained
12
1
1
1

Finance Admin Officer
Graphic designer
Secretary in finance

1
1
1
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Course Details
Tour Guiding
King 111
Supply Chain Management
Company Secretarial and Governance
Practice NQF 8/Board Exams
B Com. Accounting, Honours
Bachelor of Arts Degree
Advanced payroll course.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Type of Financial Statements

Entity

Name of Controlling Department

Department of Arts & Culture

Name of National/Provincial Entity

National Public Entity

For the Year ended

31 March 2013

Type of Financial Statements

Public Entities Annual Financial
Statements

Contact Information:
Name of Chief Financial Officer:

Mr. M. W. Mdludlu

Contact telephone number:

(047) 532 5110

Contact e-mail address:

mandelamuseum@intekom.co.za

Name of contact at relevant treasury:

Thomas Matjeni

Contact telephone number:

(012) 315 5792

Contact e-mail address:

thomas.matjeni@treasury.gov.za

Name of relevant Auditor:

Auditor General of South Africa

Contact telephone number:

(043) 709 7200

Contact e-mail address:

Rasmeni, Malusi: malusi@agsa.co.za

Preparer:

Nelson Mandela Museum

Contact telephone number:

(047) 532 5110

Contact e-mail address:

mandelamuseum@intekom.co.za

Reviewer:

Rakoma & Associates Inc.

Contact telephone number:

(043) 721 0863

Contact e-mail address:

samkelom@rakoma.co.za
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MUSEUM COUNCIL’S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

1. General Information
1.1 The Role of the Council of the Nelson Mandela Museum
In accordance with the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (No. 1 of 1999),
as amended by Act 29 of 1999, and the Treasury Regulations, the Council of the Nelson Mandela
Museum, (hereinafter the Council) is the Accounting Authority. Its role includes the submission to
the Executive Authority general information such as Annual Financial Statements and Performance
Information by 31 May each year. The Council and its Committees is now functioning efficiently
and effectively.
2. Statement of responsibility
The Public Finance Management Act (No. 1 of 1999) as amended requires the Council to ensure
that the Nelson Mandela Museum keeps full and proper records of its financial affairs. The Annual
financial statements should fairly present the state of affairs of the Nelson Mandela Museum, its
financial results, its performance against pre-determined objectives and its financial position at the
end of the financial year in terms of the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in
the manner required by the Companies Act (No. 61 of 1973).
The Annual Financial Statements are the responsibility of the Council. The Auditor General is
responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Financial Statements.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice and are based on appropriate accounting policies,
supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.
The Council has reviewed the Nelson Mandela Museum‟s budget and cash flow projections for the
year ended 31 March 2014. On the basis of this review, and in view of the current financial
position, the Council has every reason to believe that the Nelson Mandela Museum will be a going
concern in the period ahead and has continued to adopt the going concern in preparing these
Financial Statements.
The Council determines, introduces and implements systems of internal control and risk
management that are designed to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatements
and losses. The entity also maintains these controls to safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposal, and for the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of the financial
information used within the Nelson Mandela Museum.
The controls contain self-monitoring mechanisms, and actions are taken to correct deficiencies as
they are identified. The internal audit function is now in place and has commenced its function. ,
Nothing has come to the attention of the Nelson Mandela Museum Council to indicate that any
material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred
during the year under review.
3. Financial results
Full details of the financial results are set out on pages 73 to 109 in these Financial Statements.
4. Audit Report
The Audit Report of the Auditor General will be presented on pages 68 to 72.
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MUSEUM COUNCIL’S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

5. Business Address
Physical Address:
Cnr Nelson Mandela Drive & Owen Street
Bunga Building, Mthatha. 5099

Postal Address:
PO Box 52808
Mthatha. 5099

In the interim period until 31 March 2013 the Museum was operating at:
Qunu Youth and Heritage Centre
Qunu Admin Area
Mthatha
6. Nature of Entity and its Principal Business
The Nelson Mandela Museum which is spread over three sites, namely Mvezo site, Bunga Building,
and Qunu Youth and Heritage Centre. It is a public entity falling under the National Department of
Arts and Culture and was established in accordance with the prescripts of the Cultural Institutions
Act, (No. 119 of 1998) and is one of the Cabinet legacy projects.
Its core business is the conservation of heritage centred on Nelson Mandela, collecting, exhibiting
and exercising stewardship over heritage resources linked to Madiba. The Museum inspires people
to learn and share from Mandela‟s legacy. It also has an impact on development through
education, culture and tourism.
7. Materiality and Significance Framework for 2012/2013
In terms of the Public Finance Management Act, (No. 1 of 1999) as amended, read with paragraph
28.1.5 of the National Treasury Regulations, the Council has developed and agreed to a framework
of acceptable levels of materiality and significance.
8. Opinion
In the opinion of the Nelson Mandela Museum Council, based on the information available to date,
the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, set out on pages 73 to 109 fairly
present the financial position of the Nelson Mandela Museum and the results of its operations and
Cash Flow information for the year under review. The Annual Financial Statements fairly comply with
the provisions of the Treasury Regulations and the PFMA and were approved by the Museum
Council in its capacity as an Accounting Authority on 25 May 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mrs Pumla Madiba
Chairperson of Council
Date: 31 May 2013
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MANAGEMENT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Report of the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority.
1. General review of the state of affairs
The Nelson Mandela Museum is located in the rural part of the Eastern Cape, Mthatha and Qunu.
This is on the N2, halfway between Durban and Port Elizabeth, halfway between the Indian Ocean
and the Drakensberg Ukhahlamba World Heritage Site. The Museum sites traverse, include and
overlook the authentic landscape of Mr. Nelson Mandela‟s childhood and retirement home.
The Museum was opened in February 2000 by former president Nelson Mandela and the then
Minister of Arts and Culture,Dr Ben Ngubane), having been established in terms of the Cultural
Institutions Act of 1998.
Oversight over the Museum and strategic and policy direction are provided by the Council
established by the Minister every three years. The current Council commenced its responsibilities in
April 2011 which marked the start of the second decade of the Museum‟s existence.
As an organ of the state, the Museum delivers its services in alignment with Government objectives.
The Museum contributes to social cohesion, patriotism, unity, reconciliation, economic
regeneration through tourism and its procurement practices, citizen participation and awareness
through outreach, education programs and exhibitions.
The Museum programs include:
Governance (which deals with administration and Council support), Human Resources, Marketing
and Communication, Heritage Resources and Infrastructure Services.
The Nelson Mandela Museum‟s results for the year ended 31 March 2013 show a decrease in
reserves from R 6 808 912 to R 5 547 337. This reduction results from a cumulative deficit of
R 1,261,575 realised during the period under review.
The Nelson Mandela Museum received most of its funding from the subsidy allocations from the
National Government through the Department of Arts and Culture. Total revenue collected by the
Nelson Mandela Museum for the period under review decreased by 5.03% from R 20 017 660 to
R 19 011 559 compared to the same period in the previous financial year. This decrease is
attributable to undercollection in Qunu rental as well as the drop in project expenditure recognized
as revenue. The grant from the Department of Arts and Culture accounted for 96.40% of the total
revenue while 3.16% has been realized as our own income generated through rental of conference
facilities and charge for accommodation at Qunu Youth and Heritage Centre, and 0.40% as
interest from investments as well as donations. Profit on the sale of books and Golf Shirts constituted
an insignificant portion.
The operating expenditure for the period under review is R 20 273 134 eliciting a decrease of R 2 227
234 from the expenditure recorded during the previous financial year. The operating expenditure is
made up of 36.06% fixed costs of personnel, 13.88% administrative expenses, 7.97% Audit fee, 0.07%
finance costs and 43.00% other operating expenses which constitute the core business of the
organization with expense categories like exhibition expenses and advertising and promotion
forming a major part, and Security expenses as major contributors to the operating expenses figure.
The Nelson Mandela Museum is a going concern with a budget of R 18 631 000 for the Year
2013/2014. The Museum will continue to adopt a going concern basis in preparing financial
statements in the period ahead as the budget indicates. The institution is still affected by under
capacity which results into slower turnaround times in strategic areas as a result of
undercapitalization or faulty baseline funding. However, the Nelson Mandela Museum Council is
relentless in its endeavors to address the current situation.
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While a great deal of work still needs to be done to improve the baseline funding to facilitate
meeting targets set in the Museum‟s strategic plan, the results for the period under review
demonstrate progress, and management remains committed to achieving the strategic objectives
set by the Museum Council.
2. Services rendered by the Nelson Mandela Museum
The core business of the Nelson Mandela Museum is education from and conservation of Heritage
Resources centered around Nelson Mandela in context. This is done through collecting, exhibiting
and exercising stewardship over heritage resources linked to Madiba; inspiring people to learn and
share from his legacy, and impacting on development through education, culture and tourism. To
achieve this objective the Museum uses guided and unguided tours, public programs (indoor and
out-doors), formal outreach projects like the use of popular programmes to reach people and
make an impact in their lives in various ways.
In the course of conducting its business the Museum has identified the sale of memorabilia, books
and services like conference venues and accommodation as key income generating mechanisms.
3. Tariffs
Tariffs are charged for rental of conference facilities, supply of sleeping accommodation, and
hiring out of busses as means of transport. Moreover, prices are fixed for the sale of books and golf
shirts. These have been determined by benchmarking against the conference facilities rentals
charged in this area as well as the consideration of the Museum operating costs. The Nelson
Mandela Museum reviews its tariffs on an annual basis as well as when there are supplier price
changes which necessitate the revision of the Museum‟s tariffs.
4. Capacity Constraints
As a result of deficiency in funding occasioned by an anomaly in the original baseline funding, the
Nelson Mandela Museum is unable to elicit desired growth in human capital in order to realize its full
potential as it is unable to employ the necessary staff required to fulfill its core function activities
and other supporting functions. However, a couple of posts are in the process of being filled during
the period under review.
Capacity constraints delayed the institution and completion of a number of projects, and also
affected the ability of the Museum in addressing compliance with various pieces of legislation and
regulations. However, the Nelson Mandela Museum has managed to develop a satisfactory
Supply Chain Management Policy and a Fixed Asset Policy.
5. Donation Box
The Nelson Mandela Museum has established a Donations Box but it is temporarily not operating
due to Bhunga upgrade which is still in progress.
6. Equipment for Qunu
Although the equipping of the Qunu Youth and Heritage Centre has been substantially done and
Qunu Youth and Heritage is operational in conferencing and accommodation arrangements, the
equipping exercise is still in process as accommodation and conference facilities need constant
improvement and renovations.
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7. Museum Shop
The Nelson Mandela Museum Memorabilia shop has been temporarily closed due to the upgrading
of Bhunga node of the Museum which is in progress until the next financial year.
8. Conclusion
The situation of co-existence of surplus and shortage arises from a complex set of objective and
subjective factors. Dominant among these is the undercapitalization of the institution resulting in a
number of approved posts not being funded and a big portion of the facilities not being
upgraded. These then have a knock-on effect on the inadequate capacity to execute, or delays
in turnaround times for various issues.

Mr Bayanda Nyengule
Chief Executive Officer
Nelson Mandela Museum
Date: 31 May 2013
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

Notes

31 March 2013
R

31 March 2012
R

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment

2

Current Assets

4,578,526

5,691,102

4,578,526

5,691,102

26,804,121

21,008,845

Inventory

3

22,381

32,158

Receivables from Exchange Transactions

29

46,051

44,043

Cash and Cash Equivalent

4

26,735,689

20,932,644

31,382,647

26,699,947

45,447

108,720

45,447

108,720

25,789,864

19,782,313

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Non- Current Liabilities
Finance Lease Liability - Non- Current
Portion

8

Current Liabilities
Payables from Exchange Transactions

5

1,988,602

1,805,437

Finance Lease Liability- Current Portion

8

63,276

59,717

Unspent Conditional Grants

7

23,737,986

17,917,159

25,835,311

19,891,033

5,547,336

6,808,914

5,547,336

6,808,914

31,382,647

26,699,947

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL RESERVES
Accumulated Surplus

9

TOTAL NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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REVENUE

Notes

31 March 2013
R

Exchange revenue

31 March 2012
R

605,760

691,994

Sales of Goods - Exchange Transactions

10

4,699

32,381

Other Income

13

601,061

659,613

18,337,372

19,133,688

Non-exchange revenue
Transfers and Subsidies

11

18,329,372

19,077,542

Gifts, Sponsorship

12

8,000

56,146

18,943,132

19,825,682

(4,020)

(84,424)

Total revenue

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Sales
Administrative Expenses

14

(2,813,304)

(2,362,938)

Staff Costs

15

(7,108,644)

(7,203,411)

Audit Fees

16

(1,616,231)

(1,138,277)

Other Operating Expenses

17

(8,717,606)

(11,654,041)

(20,259,805)

(22,443,091)

(1,316,673)

(2,617,409)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

Deficit from Operations

Finance Income

18

68,427

191,978

Finance Costs

19

(13,329)

(57,277)

(1,261,575)

(2,482,708)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year
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Notes

Accumulated
Surplus/(Deficit)
R

Balance as at 1 April 2011 as originally
stated
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Correction of Prior year error

6

Restated Balance as at 1 April 2012
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2013

9
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Total Net Assets
R

9,291,620

9,291,620

(2,859,715)

(2,859,715)

377,007

377,007

6,808,912

6,808,912

(1,261,575)

(1,261,575)

5,547,337

5,547,337
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Notes

31 March 2013
R

31 March 2012
R

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts

18,950,901

19,857,658

Sales from exchange transactions
National Departments
Project funds
Sundry income
Gifts, Sponsorships and Donations
(Increase) in Receivables
Decrease in Inventories

4,699
17,713,360
616,012
601,061
8,000
-2,008
9,777

32,381
16,630,000
2,447,542
659,613
56,146
-44,043
76,019

(18,920,529)
(11,998,609)
(7,108,644)
186,724

(20,352,091)
(13,716,684)
(7,203,411)
568,004

20

30,372
68,426
(13,329)

(494,433)
191,978
(57,277)

Net Cash Inflows(Outflows) from Operating Activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of:
Property, Plant and Equipment
2
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

85,469

(359,732)

(39,978)
(39,978)

(1,871,227)
(1,871,227)

5,820,827
(63,273)
5,757,554

41,451
(57,848)
(16,395)

5,803,045
20,932,644
26,735,689

(2,247,355)
23,179,998
20,932,644

Payments
Goods and Services
Employee Cost
Increase in Payables

Cash Generated from/(utilizing) Operations
Interest Received
Interest Paid

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(Decrease) in non-current
Liabilities
Conditional Grants
Finance Leases
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash equivalents end of the year
4
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1. Accounting Policies
1.1 Reporting Entity
These financial statements are for the Nelson Mandela Museum. The financial statements
encompass the reporting entity as specified in the Public Finance Management Act (No. 1 of 1999)
1.2 Basis of Preparation
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements in Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board in
accordance with Section 55 of the Public Finance Management Act (No. 29 of 1999). The Annual
Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting using the going
concern assumption and are in accordance with the historical cost basis incorporating the
principal accounting policies as set out below. Accounting policies for material transactions,
events or conditions not covered by the GRAP reporting framework have been developed in
accordance with paragraphs 7, 11 and 12 of GRAP 3 and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5
issued by the Accounting Standards Board. Assets, Liabilities, Revenues and expenses have not
been offset except where offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP. These
accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, unless explicitly stated. The details of
any changes in the accounting policies are explained in the relevant policy. The principal
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out below.
1.3 Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of
the entity. Unless stated otherwise, all figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rand.
1.4 Going Concern Assumption
These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the assumption that the entity will
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.5 Comparative information
When the presentation or classification of items in the Annual Financial Statements is amended,
prior period comparative amounts are restated. The nature and the reason for reclassification are
disclosed. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is
made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated
accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the
adjustment is made retrospectively as far as practicable, and the prior year comparatives are
restated accordingly.
1.6 Significant Judgments
Receivables from Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions
The entity assesses its loans and receivables for impairment at each reporting date. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the Statement of Financial Performance, the
entity makes judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. The impairment for loans and receivables
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is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industryspecific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlates
with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the Portfolio
and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock
An allowance for stock that is older than 5 years and is projected to take more than 5 years to sell is
provided for in full. Any stock that is physically identified as damaged is written off when
discovered.
Impairment testing
Management used value in use or fair value less cost to sell to determine the recoverable amount
of assets that may have been impaired.
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on information available.
Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in note 6. Provisions are measured
in the management‟s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date.
1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Initial recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset when:
(a) It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
The initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent measurement
Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is written off over the useful life of the assets using
the straight line method.
The useful life of the assets is estimated as follows:
Motor vehicles
5 years
Computer equipment
3 years
Office equipment
6.7 years
Furniture and fittings
6.7 years
Other non-current assets
5 years
Building and structures
10 years
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The assets‟ residual value and the useful life are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial period end. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately. The depreciation
charge for each period is recognized in the profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset. An item of property plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year the item is
derecognized.
Assets held under a finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. If there is no reasonable certainty that the entity will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term, the assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful
life.
Impairments
The residual value, useful life of an asset and the depreciation method is reviewed annually and
any changes are recognized as a change in accounting estimates in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. An
assessment of whether there is an indication of impairment is done at the reporting date. Where
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant, and equipment is greater than the estimated
recoverable amount (or service amount) it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
(or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance.
Subsequent expenditure
Repair and maintenance are generally charged to expenses during the financial period in which
they are incurred. However, major renovations are capitalized and included in the carrying amount
of the asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the company, Major renovations
are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.
Heritage Assets
Heritage assets, which are culturally significant resources and which are shown at cost, are not
depreciated due to the uncertainty regarding their estimated useful lives. The impact on the
financial statements is that heritage assets have not been valued.
Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP
reporting framework, have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 7, 11, and12 of GRAP
3 and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except where offsetting is required or
permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, unless explicitly stated. The
details of any changes in accounting policies are explained in the relevant policy.
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1.8 Financial instruments
Initial recognition
The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a
financial asset, a financial liability or a residual interest instrument in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the entity‟s Statement of Financial
Position when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost (or fair value if significant difference), plus in the
case of financial instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. The fair value
of the financial instrument that is initially recognized is normally the transaction price, unless the fair
value is evident from the observable market data. The entity uses a discounted cash flow model
which incorporates entity – specific variables to determine the fair value of the financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market.
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are categorized according to their nature as either financial assets at fair value
through surplus or deficit, held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, or available-for-sale. Financial
liabilities are categorized as either at fair value through surplus or deficit or financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost (“other)
The classification depends on the purpose for which the entity acquired the financial assets.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub classifications, namely, financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at the inception of the instrument. Derivative
instruments are classified as held for trading unless they qualify as designated and hedging
instruments.
Payables From Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions and Other borrowings
Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and borrowings. They are categorized as financial
liabilities at amortised cost and are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost which is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
Cash and Cash equivalents consists of cash in the bank and short term deposits, and other shortterm investments that are highly liquid and can readily be converted into cash
Financial assets are designated into this category when their accounting treatment in terms of this
category results in more relevant information than accounting in terms of another category or it is a
contract that contained one or more embedded derivatives.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially measure at fair value excluding any
transaction costs. Subsequently these assets are measured at fair value, with gains and losses
recognized in profit or loss. Net gains or losses consist of fair value adjustments and gains and losses
on derecognition and they are included in “other income” or “other expenses”. Interest and
Dividend Income are reported separately from net gains or losses. Interest income, calculated
using the effective rate method, is included in “interest income”.
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Held to maturity and loans and receivables
These financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
At subsequent reporting dates these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less any impairment loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts. An impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evide3nce that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the investment‟s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in investment‟s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date of
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.
Financial assets that the company has a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held to maturity.
Receivables from exchange Transactions and Non-Exchange Transactions
This category represents non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. It includes short-term receivables, such as trade and other
receivables, and long-term receivables such as loans granted. This category may also include
financial assets that would have been impaired or past due if the terms of the instrument were not
renegotiated.
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
items included in this category are measured at the amortised cost, calculated based on the
effective interest method, and interest income is included in profit or loss for the period. Net gains
or losses represent reversals of impairment losses, impairment losses and gains and losses on
derecognition. Net gains and losses are included in “other income” or “other expenses”.
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount, if
the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Impairment losses are recognized on loans and receivables when there is objective evidence of
impairment. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument.
Assets that are individually significant are considered separately for impairment, when these assets
are impaired, and impairment loss is recognized directly against the related asset. Assets that are
individually significant and that are not impaired and groups of small balances are considered for
impairment on a portfolio basis, based on similar credit risk. Impairment losses are recognized in an
“allowance account for credit losses” until the impairment can be identified with an individual
asset, and at that point, the allowance is written off against the individual asset.
Financial Instruments carried on the statement of Financial Position include Cash, Bank balances,
Call and Notice Deposits, Receivables and Payables and are measured at cost.
1.9 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Unrealised differences on monetary assets
and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they occur.
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1.10 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost and subsequently at the lower of cost or net realizable
value. Any write-down to net realizable value is recognized in the profit or loss. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition (based on normal operating capacity). Cost is
calculated using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less any costs of completion and disposal.
1.11 Payables from Exchange Transactions
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
1.12 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
Finance Leases – Lessee
Finance leases are recognized as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of minimum lease payments is the interest
rate implicit in the lease.
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of the remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The difference between the amounts recognized as an expense and the contractual
payments are recognized as an operating lease asset, this liability is not discounted. Any
contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
1.13

Irregular and Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of or not in accordance with, a
requirement of any applicable legislation. Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure means expenditure
that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All
irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which
they are incurred.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to
76(4) of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):
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Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was
condoned before year end and/or before finalization of the financial statements must also be
recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no futher action is
also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for
which condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure
register.
No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the
following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be
updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which
was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded
appropriately in the irregular expenditure register.
If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be
created if such person is liable in law.
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned.
If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount
as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular
expenditure register must also be updated accordingly.
If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law:
The expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure
item.
Be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.
1.14

Taxation

The Museum is exempt from taxation in terms of section 10(1) (Ca) (i) of the Income Tax Act.
1.15.

Transfers and Subsidies/Government grants

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction, e.g. grant, other than services in-kind, that
meets the definition of an asset shall be recognised as an asset when, and only when:
it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
asset will flow to the entity; and
The fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The entity only recognises an asset arising from a non-exchange transaction when it gains control of
resources that meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the recognition criteria.
Grants received without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is
recognised. If the entity has satisfied all the present obligations related to the inflow, it recognises
an asset in the Statement of Financial Position and corresponding revenue in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
If the entity has partially satisfied the present obligations related to the inflow, it recognises an asset
and revenue to the extent that a liability is not also recognised and a liability in the Statement of
Financial Position to the extent that the present obligations have not been satisfied.
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1.16

Provisions

The entity recognizes a provision when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it‟s
probable that the entity will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured based on
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect at the time value of money is material, the amount of the provision is discounted
to present value using a pre-tax rate that reflects current assessments of the time value of money.
The increase in the amount of the provision as a result of the passage of time is recorded in profit or
loss for the year.
1.17

Employee benefits

Compensation of Employees
Short – term employee benefits include salaries and wages, short-term compensated absences
and bonus plans. The entity recognizes a liability and corresponding expense for short-term
employee benefits when an employee has rendered services that entitle him or her to the benefits.
Post-employment benefits
Payments made to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense on the accrual basis.
The Nelson Mandela Museum operates defined contribution plans called Omed Orion Provident
Fund administered by Old Mutual and Medical Aid Scheme administered by Bonitas and Liberty
Medical Aid Scheme. Once the contributions have been paid, the museum has no further
payment obligation. The regular contributions constitute periodic costs for the year in which they
are due and such are included in the staff costs.
1.18

Revenue

Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrues to the entity directly in
return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration
received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and discounts.
Specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.
The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognised.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services
or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties‟ in an arm‟s length transaction.
Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
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Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade
discounts and volume rebates.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably,
revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the reporting date.
The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are
satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the entity;
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably;
and
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame,
revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence
that some other method better represents the stage of completion.
When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date. Stage of completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage
of total services to be performed.
Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
are transferred to the buyer.
Interest
Revenue from interest is recognised if it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest is recognised, in the surplus or
deficit, using the effective interest method.
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable
by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to
contributions from owners.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has
liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash,
goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange or gives value to another entity
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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Recognition
An inflow of resources from non exchange transactions recognized as an asset is recognized as
revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognized in respect of the same inflow.
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognized as a liability in respect of an inflow of
resources from non exchange transaction recognized as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount
of the liability recognized, and recognizes an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Grant Funding
An unconditional grant is recognised in surplus or deficit as other income when the grant becomes
receivable.
Other government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and the entity will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant,and are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.
As an entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources
from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of
the liability recognised and recognise an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
1.19

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs received on conditional grants are recognized on a systematic basis using the
percentage of completion of the projects in profit or loss. Other borrowing costs are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.
1.20

Budget information

Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget
authorisations (or equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or
similar.
General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were
obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period 1/04/2012 to 31/03/2013
The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore
a reconciliation between the statement of financial performance and the budget have been
included in the annual financial statements. Refer to note 21 and 22
1.21 Related Parties
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence
of the three spheres of Government in South Africa, Public entities may either be related to the
Provincial sphere or the National sphere of Government.
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Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with
legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.
Close members of the Family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be
expected to influence or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
1.22 Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not effective
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally
recognized Accounting Practice(GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance
with Section 55 of the Public Finance Management Act ( Act no 29 of 1999). The Annual Financial
Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal
accounting policies set out below.
The following are the GRAP standards complied with:
GRAP 1: (as revised in 2010): Presentation of Financial Statements
GRAP 2: (as revised in 2010): Cash Flow Statement
GRAP 3: (as revised in 2013): Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates & errors
GRAP 4: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
GRAP 5: Borrowing Costs
GRAP 9: (as revised in 2010): Revenue from exchange transactions
GRAP 12: (as revised in 2010): inventories
GRAP 13: (as revised in 2010) leases
GRAP 14: (as revised in 2010): Events after the reporting date
GRAP 17: (as revised in 2010): Property, Plant & Equipment
GRAP 19: (as revised in 2010): Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
GRAP 21: Impairment of non –cash generating assets
GRAP 23: (as revised in 2010): Revenue from non -exchange transactions
GRAP 24: (as revised in 2010) Presentation of budget information in financial statements
GRAP 25: Employee Benefits
GRAP 26: (as revised in 2010): Impairment of cash generating assets
GRAP 31: Intangible assets
GRAP 104: Financial instruments
The following are GRAP Standards that are effective and the entity has opted to use the transitional
period until 2015 for the full implementation:
GRAP 103: Heritage assets
Other GRAP Standards issued but not yet effective that might affect the entity in future are as
follows:
GRAP 18: Segment Reporting
GRAP 20: Related Party Disclosure
GRAP 106 - Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control
GRAP 107 Mergers
Management has considered all the above-mentioned GRAP Standards approved but no
effective date and anticipates that the adoption of these standards will not have a significant
impact on the financial position, financial performance or cash flow of the Entity.
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(159,391)

Movements for 2011/12

(951,992)

Accumulated depreciation

(1,880,821)

2,106,958

226,137

510,321
1,462,313

(98,207)

27,016

(37,779)

Gross carrying amount

Depreciation charge
Closing net carrying amount 31
March 2013

-

(71,191)

(37,779)

Additions

(1,782,613)

(914,213)

Accumulated depreciation
Movements for Period ending
March 2013

2,079,941

297,328

548,100
1,462,313

(377,117)

(159,391)

10,086

(367,031)

(1,405,496)

2,069,855

664,359

Computer
Equipment
R

Gross carrying amount

Depreciation charge
Closing net carrying amount 31
March 2012

-

(754,822)

Accumulated depreciation

Additions

1,462,313

707,491

Motor Vehicle
R

Gross carrying amount

Opening net carrying amount as at
1 April 2011

2. Property, Plant and Equipment

(460,383)

797,052

336,669

(102,016)

-

(102,016)

(358,368)

797,052

438,684

(108,546)

18,758

(89,788)

(249,821)

778,294

528,473

Office
Equipment
R

3,514,469
(1,974,914)

1,539,555

12,961
(475,629)

(462,668)

3,501,507
(1,499,286)

2,002,221

7,490
(486,272)

3,494,017
(1,013,013)
(478,782)

2,481,004

Furniture &
Fittings
R

(484,345)

579,600

95,255

(57,149)

-

(57,149)

(427,195)

579,600

152,405

(97,959)

-

(97,959)

(329,237)

579,600

250,363

Capitalised
Leased Assets
R
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(1,004,097)

1,284,258

280,161

(211,532)

-

(211,532)

(792,566)

1,284,258

491,692

(221,387)

1,899

(219,488)

(571,179)

1,282,359

711,180

Other non-Current
assets
R

-

-

-

(242,567)

1,832,995

1,590,428

(170,244)

-

(170,244)

(72,323)

1,832,995

1,760,672

(72,323)

1,832,995

1,760,672

Building &
Structures
R

(6,999,119)

11,577,645

4,578,526

(1,152,556)

39,977

(1,112,579)

(5,846,564)

11,537,666

5,691,102

(1,522,996)

1,871,228

348,232

(4,323,568)

9,666,438

5,342,870

TOTAL

89

(125,471)

Movements for 2010/11

(914,213)

Accumulated depreciation

(1,782,613)

2,079,941

297,328

548,101
1,462,313

(377,117)

10,086

(367,031)

(1,405,496)

(159,391)

Gross carrying amount

Depreciation charge
Closing net carrying amount 31
March 2012

-

(159,391)

Movements for 2011/12

Additions

(754,822)

2,069,855

664,359

707,492
1,462,313

(384,778)

323,241

(61,537)

(1,020,719)

1,746,614

725,896

Computer
Equip
R

(125,471)

Accumulated depreciation

Gross carrying amount

Depreciation charge
Closing net carrying amount 31
March 2011

-

(629,350)

Accumulated depreciation

Additions

1,462,313

832,963

Motor Vehicles
R

Gross carrying amount

Opening net carrying amount as at
1 April 2010

Property, Plant and Equipment

(358,368)

797,052

438,685

(108,546)

18,758

(89,788)

(249,821)

778,294

528,473

(102,678)

101,083

(1,595)

(147,143)

677,211

530,068

Office Equip
R

3,501,507
(1,499,286)

2,002,222

(486,272 )

7,490

3,494,017
(1,013,013)
(478,783)

2,481,005

865,332
(460,975)

404,357

2,628,686
(552,039)

2,076,648

Furniture &
Fittings
R

(427,195)

579,600

152,405

(97,959)

-

(97,959)

(329,237)

579,600

250,364

(155,099)

-

(155,099)

(174,138)

579,600

405,463

Capitalised
Leased Assets
R
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(792,566)

1,284,258

491,692

(221,387)

1,899

(219,488)

(571,179)

1,282,359

711,180

(237,650)

123,896

(113,754)

(333,530)

1,158,464

824,934

Other non-Current
assets
R

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(72,323)

1,832,995

1,760,671

(72,323)

1,832,995

1,760,671

Building &
Structures
R

(5,846,564)

11,537,666

5,691,102

(1,522,996)

1,871,227

348,232

(4,323,569)

9,666,439

5,342,870

(1,466,651)

1,413,551

(53,100)

(2,856,918)

8,252,888

5,395,970

TOTAL
R
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3. Inventory

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

Finished goods

22,381

32,158

Total

22,381

32,158

Cash and balances with banks

344,729

265,313

Short-term deposit/investments

26,389,035

20,654,302

1,925

13,028

26,735,689

20,932,643

26,735,689

20,932,643

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash shown as current assets

For the purposes of the cash flow statement:
Cash & cash equivalents
5. Payables from Exchange and Non-Exchange
Transactions

Y
-

Accruals

1,131,107

982,483

Management Incentive Bonus Accrual

392,825

392 825

Leave Pay Accrual

464,670

430,129

1,988,602

1,805,437

Total
Trade and Other Payables are non-interest
bearing and have an average term of 7-30 days
6. Prior period errors

During the current financial year it was discovered that provision for management performance
incentive bonus of R 432,108 was raised for the year 2011/12 while no assessments were performed to the
individual employees to entitle them to the performance bonus. Since no assessments were done and
therefore the transaction does not qualify as provision in terms of GRAP 19, the amount was reversed and
the prior year figures were amended accordingly.
Trade Receivables from exchange transactions during the 2011/12 financial year were found to have
been overstated by an amount of R 52 759, as the monies were found to have been collected during the
financial year. The account has been adjusted and prior year figures corrected.
Trade receivables from non exchange transactions were found to have been overstated by an amount
of R 2 343.00. The amount related to staff debtors and has been recovered from leave pay due to the
Staff member on exit during the year 2011/12. The account has been adjusted and prior year figures
corrected.
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The effect of the above errors on the Annual Financial Statements are as follows:

31 March 2013

Line item affected in the Statement of Financial
Performance

31 March 2012

Decrease in Staff Costs

-

(432 108)

Decrease in Sundry Income

-

52 759

Increase in Staffleave Pay

-

2 343

Increase in Accumulated Surplus

-

(377,006)

Decrease in Provisions

-

(432,108)

Decrease in Receivables from Exchange
Transactions
Decrease in Receivables from Non-Exchange
Transactions
(Decrease) in net Assets

-

52,759

-

2,343

-

(377,006)

17,917,158

17,875,708

Add: current year receipts

5,735,000

1,891,684

Less: Revenue recognised

(616,011)

(2,460,763)

707,886

613,038

(6,047)

(2,509)

Closing balance

23,737,986

17,917,158

Total Conditional Grants
Analysis for financial reporting purposes:

23,737,986

17,917,158

Current portion

23,737,986

17,917,158

Line item affected in Statement of Financial
Position

7. Conditional grants
Opening balance

Add: Interest received
Less: Interest recognised
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8 Finance Lease Liability
31 March 2013
Minimum
Lease
Payments

Future Finance
Charges

Present Value of
Minimum Lease
Payments

Amount payable under finance leases within
one year

70,651

7,377

63,274

In the second to fifth year inclusive

47,100

1,654

45,447

-

-

-

117,751

9,031

108,721

After five years
Total finance lease liability

(63,274)
45,447
The lease terms range between 3 and 5 years and the average effective borrowings rate is 12%. Interest
rates are determined on inception.
No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.
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21 March 2012
Minimum
Lease
Payments
Amount payable under finance leases within one
year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
After five years

72,745
117,751
190,496

Future
Finance
Charges

Present Value of
Minimum Lease
Payments

13,028
9,030
22,058

59,717
108,720
168,437
(59,717)
108,720
The lease terms range between 3 and 5 years and the average effective borrowings rate is 12%. Interest
rates are determined on inception.
No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.

9. Accumulated surplus
Balance at the beginning of the year
(Deficit) as previously stated

6,808,912

9,291,620

-

(2,859,715)

Correction of Prior year error

377,007

(Deficit) for the Period

(1,261,575)

-

5,547,337

6,808,912

Book Sales

4,699

3,497

Qunu craft

-

28,884

4,699

32,381

17,713,360

16,630,000

616,012

2,447,542

18,329,372

19,077,542

Balance at the end of the year

10. Sale of goods

Total

11. Transfers and subsidies received
National Departments
Project funds
Total
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12. Gifts, sponsors and donations
(Annexure 1)

8 000

56,146

Sundry income

601 061

659,613

Total

601 061

659,613

308,886

217,403

-

(10,420)

198,956

184,078

57,784

52,629

Cleaning

563,894

705,402

Insurance

198,152

202,731

45,890

47,248

Recruitment expenses

211,413

44,058

Telephone and postage

828,273

694,976

Training and staff development

312,428

161,703

50,434

32,026

-

5,100

Staff welfare

25,493

26,002

Workmen‟s compensation

11,701

-

2,813,304

2,362,936

13. Other income

14. Administrative expenses
Professional fees
Entertainment
Stationery and printing
Bank charges

Licenses

Subscriptions
Legal Fees

Total
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31 March 2013
66

31 March 2012

Wages and salaries

6,804,629

6,925,398

Basic salaries

4,072,624

4,056,402

11,500

40,109

157,846

145,145

2,484,410

2,612,702

78,249

71,040

172,755
67,038
64,222

149,215
57,419
71,379

7,108,644

7,203,411

308,064

771,882

44,707

173,463

624

1 497

15. Staff costs

- Temporary staff
13th Cheque
Executive director's emoluments
Defined contribution plan expense
Social contributions (Employer‟s
contributions)
- Medical
- UIF
- SDL
Total

Remuneration of the Chief Executive
Officer (K.Mpumlwana)
Annual Salary
13th Cheque and Incentive bonus
Contribution to UIF,Medical and Pension
fund
Total

353,395

-

946,842

Remuneration of the Chief Executive
Officer (B.Nyengule)
Annual Salary
Contribution to UIF,Medical and Pension
fund

387,625

-

773

-

Total

388,398

-
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Remuneration of the Chief Financial
Officer (M.Mdludlu)
Annual Salary
13th Cheque and incentive bonus
Contribution to UIF,Medical and Pension
fund
Total

31 March13

31 March12

657,689

604,582

53,145

107,191

1 521

1 497

712,355

-

713,270

Remuneration of Senior Managers
(N.Tetani)
Annual Salary
Contribution to UIF,Medical and Pension
fund

389 242

353,657

1 521

1 497

Total

390,763

355,154

Annual Salary
13th Cheque and incentive bonus
Contribution to UIF,Medical and Pension
fund

589,825
48,153

506,155
89,784

1,521

1,497

Total

639,499

597,436

7,500
36,000
26,750
20,000
31,250
24,000
26,000

25,000
40,250
22,500
16,000
37,750
20,000
24,000

171,500

185,500

Remuneration of Senior Managers
(N.Solani)

Non- Executive Management/Directors
P. Madiba
A. Vikilahle
Dr P. Dyantyi
Dr Z. Njongwe
Prince M. Ndamase
Dr B. Mngomezulu
Chief P. Holomisa
C. Essau
Total
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31 March 2013

31 March 2012

L. Majova-Songca

17,000

13,250

L. Gadd

10,000

20,000

2,000

-

29,000

33,250

Remuneration of the Audit Committee

L. Khangala
Total
16. Audit Fee
Statutory Audit

1,616,231

1,138,277

1,616,231

1,138,277

399,770
90,434
740,176
244,383
311,248
184,545

479,642
133,324
203,984
546,944
246,705
121,971
178,268

1,152,556

1,522,996

Exhibition Costs

210,255

1,822,754

Transportation and Storage costs

492,855

179,070

-

130,691

3,638,051

3,517,694

626,096

1,182,941

5,759

3,559

Functions and Catering

290,423

284,112

Security

952,879

1,646,331

Rentals in respect of operating leases
- Plant, machinery and equipment

118,352

-

8,717 606

11,654 041

17. Other operating Expenses
Consultants, Contractors and Special Services
Equipment items expensed as per Entity Policy
Other project expenses
Maintenance, Repairs and Running costs
Property and Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Other maintenance repairs and Running
costs
Depreciation

General Expenses-unallocated expenses
Travel and Subsistence
Advertising and Promotion
Stock Loss

Total
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18. Finance Income
Interest on
Cash and Bank Deposits
Total

19. Finance Costs
Interest on
- Finance Leases
- Other Interest
Total

68,427

191,978

68,427

191,978

13,329
-

18,381
38,896

13,329

57,277

(1,261,575)
(55,108)
(68,437)
13,329

(2,482,708)
(134,701)
(191,978)
57,277

Non-Cash Movements/Working Capital
Changes

1,347.055

2,122,976

Depreciation
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

1,152,556
186,729
(2,007)
9,777

1,522,996
568,004
(44,043)
76,019

30,372

(494,433)

20. Cash Generated from (Utilised in)
Operations
(Deficit) for the Year/Period
Net Interest Total
Interest Received
Interest Paid

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

98
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(1,616,231)
(8,717,606)

Audit Fees

Other Operating Expenses

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Finance Costs

Finance Income

Surplus/(Deficit) from Operations

(1,261,575)

(13,329)

68,427

(1,316,673)

(20,259,805)

(7,108,644)

Staff Costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

(2,813,304)

(4,020)

18,943,132

8 000

18,329,372

601 061

4,699

Actual

Administrative Expenses

Cost of Sales

EXPENDITURE

Total revenue

Gifts, Sponsorship

Transfers and Subsidies

Other Income

Sales of Goods - Exchange Transactions

Statement of financial performance

21. Statement of comparison of Budget and Actual amounts

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

-

(1,753,729)

-

617,470

(2,371,199)

(20,593,823)

(8,051,507)

(174,670)

(9,520,396)

(2,847,250)

-

18,222,624

15,624

17,467,000

740,000

Budgeted
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4,699

(492,154)

(13,329 )

(549,043)

(562,371)

334,018

(666,099)

(1,441,561)

2,411,752

33,946

(4,020)

720,508

(7 624)

862,372

(138,939)

Variance

-27%

100%

-89%

8%

825%

-25%

-1%

100%

-49%

5%

-19%

100%

% Variance

100

601,061

Actual
740,000

Budgeted

(138,939)

Variance

-19%

% Variance

8,000

15,624

(7,624)

4,699

(4,020)

-

-

4,699

4,020

100%

100%

-49%

Sales had not been budgeted for, but golf shirts which had been purchased for promotional purposes for an event held by the museum, of
which the delivery was made after the event, are being sold to recoup costs.

Sales of Goods - Exchange Transactions

Cost of Sales

c. Sales and Cost of Sales

When the museum moved from Umtata to Qunu, the donations box was closed and has not been reopened which has resulted in the
variance as the donations were budgeted for.

b. Gifts and sponsorships

The museum's conference centre and accommodation are also used for museum programmes and in the year under review 2
programmes were run (Arts incubator and winter school camp) which are both museum non paying programmes and were not taken into
account when the budget was drafted.

a. Other Income

Variances above 12% are deemed material and explanations for material variances have been detailed below.

EXPLANATION FOR MATERIAL VARIANCES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
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(7,108,644)

(9,520,396)

Budgeted
2,411,752

Variance

-25%

%
Variance

(1,616,231)

(174,670)

(1,441,561)

68,427

617,470

(549,043)

-89%

825%

g. Finance Costs

(13,329)

-

(13,329)

100%

Major interest is earned on project funds, but the movement in project funds in the year under review is small resulting in the decrease in
financial income.

f. Finance Income

R174 670 was budgeted for which is 1% of the total planned expenditure as required by the Department of National Treasury.

e. Audit Fees

The variance is a result of vacant posts which were budgeted for (i.e. Company Secretary and Security Facilities and Logistics Manager
etc.) and not filled.

d. Staff Cost

Actual

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
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22. Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the deficit in
the Statement of Financial Performance
Net (deficit) per Statement of Financial Performance
Adjust for:
Sale of Goods - exchange transactions
Transfers and Subsidies received
Gifts, Sponsorships and Donations received
Other Income
Cost of Sales
Administrative expenses
Staff Costs

Audit Fees
Other operating expenses
Finance Income
Finance Costs
Net deficit per approved budget
23. Unauthorised, Irregular, Wasteful & Fruitless Expenditure
Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure
Opening Balance
Irregular Expenditure-Current year
Irregular Expenditure-Condoned
Total Irregular Expenditure-Awaiting Cond.

31 March 2013

31 March 2012

(1,261,575)

(2,482,708)

(4,699)

(32,381)

(862,372)
7,624

(2,447,542)

138,939
4,020
(33,946)
( 2,411,752)

(142,173)
84,424
(519,563)
(480,836)

1,441,561
666,099
549,043
13,329

971,977
3,324,598
(191,978)
57,277

(1,753,729)

(1,915,051)

16 245 176
1 182 022
(16 245 176)

13 503 639
2 741 537
-

1 182 022

16 245 176

(56,146)

Analysis of Current Irregular Expenditure.
Incident

Disciplinary Steps/Criminal
Proceedings

A total amount of R 863 448(2011/12 –R nil) relating to Nonsubmission of Tax Clearance Certificate by various Service
providers on submission of proposals and quotations for
procurement of Goods and Services as prescribed by TR 16A
3.2(a)

An application for condonement of
irregular expenditure will be made to
the Accounting Authority. The
amount has been disclosed as
Irregular expenditure in the Annual
Financial Statements in accordance
with Treasury Regulation no. 9.1.5
and 28.2.1

A total amount of R 177 923(20111/12- R nil) relating to
Advertisement of Tender for less than 21 days relating to a
tender awarded to the Internal Audit Service ProviderRakoma and Associates in accordance with TR 16A 6.3©

An application for Condonement of
Irregular expenditure will be made to
the Accounting Authority. The
amount has been disclosed as
Irregular expenditure in the Annual
Financial Statements in accordance
with Treasury Regulation no. 9.1.5
and 28.2.1
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A total amount of R 140 651(2011/12 R nil) relating to
procurement of Goods and Services form Service Providers
without inviting three quotes and with no deviation approval
from the Accounting Officer as required by the Supply Chain
Management Framework and Practice Note no.8 of 2007/08

An application for Condonement of
Irregular expenditure will be made to
the Accounting Authority. The
amount has been disclosed as
Irregular expenditure in the Annual
Financial Statements in accordance
with Treasury Regulation no. 9.1.5
and 28.2.1

24. Related Parties
Relationships
Controlling department: Department of Arts and culture
Related party transactions
Government Grant
Department of Arts and culture - NMM core business
Department of Arts and culture - discretionary fund
Total

17 713 360
5 735 000
23 448 360

16 630 000
16 630 000

25. Risk Management
Capital risk management
NMM is solely dependent on the grant from the Department of Arts and Culture.
Liquidity risk
The entity receives a grant from the Department of Art and culture. All accruals and commitments in
2012/2013 are accounted for on the grant received for 2012/2013 financial year, therefore the entity
will meet its expected financial commitments.
Ongoing reviews of cash flows are done to ensure that payments and accruals do not exceed
grant received.
Interest rate risk
The entity limits its exposure by dealing with well established institutions.
Less than
1 year
At 31st March 2013
Finance Lease
63,274
Trade & Other Payables
1,497,348
At 31 March 2012
Finance Lease
59,717
Trade & Other Payables
1,412,612
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Between 1
and 2 year

Between 2
and 5years

45,447
108,720
-

-

NELSON MANDELA MUSEUM ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Market Risk
The entity's activities expose it primarily to the risks of fluctuations in interest rates.
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Market risk exposures are measured using sensitive analysis. A sensitive analysis shows how surplus, and/or
net assets, would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably
possible at the reporting date.
The entity's interest risk profile consists of fixed and floating rate bank balances which exposes the entity
to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk and can be summarised as follows:
Financial Assets
Bank deposits linked to South African prime rate.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on financial instruments exposure to interest
rates at reporting date. For floating rate instruments, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the
instrument outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year.
The basis points increases or decreases, as detailed in the table below, were determined by
management and represent management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in surplus. A negative number below indicates a
decrease in surplus.
As the entity does not have any instruments that effect net assets directly, the disclosure only indicates
the effect of the change in interest rates on surplus.
There were no changes in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from
one year to the next.
Increase/(Decrease) in interest rates
The estimated increase/(Decrease) in basis points
Effect on Surplus
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50
-

50
104,663
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The entity‟s principal financial liability comprises trade and other payables and financial
lease liability. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the
entity‟s operations. The entity has financial asset in the form of cash and short-term
deposits, which arise directly from its operations.
Classification of Financial Instruments

31 March 2013
Financial
Liability at
Loans and amortised
Receivables
Cost

Total

Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent

26,735,689

-

26,735,689

Trade and Other Payables

-

1,497,348

1,497,348

Finance Lease Liability-Current portion

-

63,274

63,274

26,735,689

1,560,622

28,296,311

Liabilities

31 March 2012
Financial
Liability at
Loans and amortised
Receivables
Cost
Assets

Total

20,932,644

-

20,932,644

Trade and Other Payables

-

1,412,613

1,412,613

Finance lease liability-Current portion

-

59,717

59,717

20,932,644

1,472,330

22,404,974

Cash and Cash equivalent
Liabilities

26. Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis based on the
assumption that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realization of assets and settlement of liabilities, commitments and obligations will occur in
the ordinary course of business in the near future.
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27. Post balance sheet events
There were no events identified after balance sheet date that require adjustments or
disclosure in the financial statements.
28. Employee benefit information
The entity contributes to the Omed Orion Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan. This
fund has been registered and governed under the Pension Fund Act, 1956 as amended.
For the period ending 31st March 2013, the monthly contributions towards the provident
Fund are a minimum of 7.5% of employees basic salary, which is calculated as the cost to
company and a 7.5% is contributed by the employer. The employee reserves the right to
contribute a larger percentage as and when he/she so decides.
The contributions of R 64,222 (31 March 2012: R 71,379) were expensed in the current
period.
29. Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Receivables are composed of :
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
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39,163

39,163

6,888

4,880

46,051

44,043
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ANNEXURE 1 STATEMENT OF GIFTS,DONATION AND SPONSORSHIP
31 March 2013
Name of Donor
In Cash
Total

Various

31 March 2012

Nature of gift
donation or sponsor
Donation
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8,000
8,000

56,145
56,145
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31 March 2013

31 March 2012

REVENUE
Sales
Government grant
Conditional Grant conditions met
Donations received
Sundry Income

4,699

32,381

17,713,360

16,630,000

616,012

2,447,542

8 000

56,146

601,061

659,613

18,943,132

19,825,682

LESS: EXPENDITURE
Cost of sales

4,020

Administrative Expenses

2,769,765

Bank Charges

84,424
2,362,938

57,784

52,629

Cell phones

623,743

480,353

Cleaning

563,894

705,402

27,687

25,431

Courier Charges
Functions & Catering

-

Insurance

(10,420)

198,152

202,731

2,352

47,248

Printing and Stationery

198,956

184,078

Professional fees

308,886

222,503

-

304

211,413

44,058

Workmen's compensation

11,701

-

Staff Training and welfare

337,920

187,705

50,434

32,026

176,843

188,888

Insurance and Licenses

Post box rental
Recruitment expenses

Subscriptions
Telephone & Fax
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Staff cost
Casual Labour
Salaries and wages
UIF
Skills development levy
Pension
Medical Aid

7,108,644
11,500
6,714,880
67,038
64,222
78,249
172,755

7,203,411
40,109
6,814,249
57,419
71,379
71,040
149,215

Audit fees (SPR)

1,616,231

1,138,277

Statutory Audit

1,616,231

1,138,277

Other operating expenses (SPR)

8,761,144

11,654,041

Museum Advertising and Promotion
Computer Expenses
Consulting fees
Depreciation
Council travel and accommodation
Equipment Hire
Exhibition expenses
Museum Function & Catering
Leasing Charges
Fuel & Oil
Research and Development
Repairs and maintenance
Replacements
Security expenses
Travel – Local
- Qunu Craft Expenses
General Expenses
Transportation
Transportation and Storage
Stock loss

626,096
45,890
399,770
1,152,556
896,624
210,255
290,423
118,352
182,193
90,434
555,631
952,879
2,741,427
492,855
5,759

1,182,941
6,550
463,742
1,522,996
592,050
20,484
1,802,270
284,112
214,112
203,984
540,394
133,324
1,646,331
2,683,994
27,386
130,691
4,800
174,270
3,559

20,259,804

22,443,091

68,427
(13,329)

191,978
(57,277)

(1,261,575)

(2,482,708)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Plus: Finance income
Less: Finance cost
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR
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